Q Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
@ HEBREZRER QA

1616512 (Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (Stock Code : 1189)
(REREIMARLZERAT) (BHRSE : 1189)

Annual Report

%2018




Corporate Information
NAEHR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Dr. Yap, Allan (Chairman)

Ms. Chan Ling, Eva (Managing Director)
Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert

Mr. Sin Chi Fai

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Law Sau Lai

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

Room 3401, 34th Floor
Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
Wan Chai

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Moore Stephens CPA Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HM 08

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

Stock Code on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited: 1189

WEBSITE

www.rhh.com.hk

EEg

BITEE
BERBEL(EE)
BRIC 2L+ (B FARMETE)
BREFLEE

BUHARTEE
BE L
B B 5
BRI
REME
BRABLL
MRS E

Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

BREERETEZEME
%

T

ERRERI83HR

& o

34123401 E

e
REFHERAHEHHERA A

RiiBFETEE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

The Belvedere Building
69 Pitts Bay Road
Pembroke HM 08
Bermuda

BRIDBFERLRDE
EEMERBERAR
&5

EREANBH183%
AR N221E

IR A X 5%

BEBBARSHARRAR
B& A 5% - 1189

gt

www.rhh.com.hk



Contents

Management Discussion and Analysis

Directors’ Profile

Senior Management's Profile

Corporate Governance Report

Report of the Directors

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Summary

Particulars of Properties

14
18
19
42
58
69

71
73
75
77
193
194

=%

EEEWLR DT
ExEmN
EREBABEN
EEERBS

ExgRs
BYRBEHE
SERERAMEZERER

REMBRRER
RERREZZH R
FeRERER
REMBHRMEE
BMBEHE

MEFR

HEBEERERAE

201853



Management Discussion and Analysis
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MARKET REVIEW

In review of 2018, the hotel market continued to recover steadily but
great market volatility and uncertainties in the global financial markets
emerged every time the United States President Trump announced
new political views and economic measures, such as the outbreak
of trade war following the impositions of tariff by the United States
on European Union, Canada and China and the positions taken in
respect of the tension between North Korea and the United States,
as well as unfortunate terrorist events affecting tourism and hotel
businesses in global markets. As concerns with the impact of trade
war gathers, stocks markets have already taken hits in 2018. Under
these overall economic circumstances given, it is a constant challenge
to drive revenues, control costs and maintain or improve our operating
margins.

Despite signs of stabilisation, operating environment remained
challenging as the pressures posed by the United States trade
negotiation, the global economic downturn and the continued
economic transition in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
are set to linger. With the same pace as in the previous period while
markets expected a 6.7% expansion on the PRC economy, its GDP
advanced 6.6% year-on-year in 2018, reflecting a negative growth
of about 0.3% as compared to 2017. Despite the geopolitical
uncertainties and protectionism like the trade war, its economy
continues to pursuit long term growth opportunities inorganically.
Meanwhile, Hong Kong's retail premises have seen rental up running
in core areas on the back of increased tourists numbers and strong
local employment rate, for 2018 as a whole, Hong Kong’s GDP grew

by 3.0% in real terms, that was faster than the trend growth of 2.8%

over the past ten years for the second year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MARKET REVIEW (CONTINUED)

In 2018, total visitors arrivals to Hong Kong amounted to
approximately 65.1 million, representing an increase of 11.4%, after
growing by 3.2% in 2017, which accounting for 78.3% of the total
were visitors from Mainland China, and those visitors from Mainland
China also increased by 14.8% vyear-on-year, after rising by 3.9%
in 2017. With the stabilisation of downward pressure posed by the
“one trip one week” measure on arrivals more than two years after
its implementation, same-day Mainland China arrivals increased mildly
by 2.0%. Visitors from the traditional short haul markets (excluding
from Mainland China) dropped by 0.6% in 2018. Of the total visitors
arrivals, overnight visitors accounted for approximately 29.3 million,
which was an increase of 4.9% when compared on a year-on-year
basis. The average hotel room occupancy level for all the surveyed
hotels under different categories in Hong Kong for the year ended 31
December 2018 increased from 89.3% to 91.0%, recorded the fair
occupancy gains. Compared to occupancy, the overall room rate rose

marginally by approximately 6.8% yearly in 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Given the challenging business environment, but with the gradual
recovery in the tourist markets, the Group had reported stable
business development with steady performance in respect of its overall
hotel investment during the year under audit. Revenue of the Group
attained Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") 263.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2018, representing an increase of 4.2% as compared to
HK$252.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2017. The results
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 was a profit of
HK$0.4 million (Year ended 31 December 2017: loss of HK$125.2
million) which was mainly attributable to gross profit of HK$106.3
million (Year ended 31 December 2017: gross profit of HK$100.7
million); administrative expenses of HK$137.6 million (Year ended 31
December 2017: HK$126.2 million); distribution and selling expenses
of HK$1.3 million (Year ended 31 December 2017: HK$1.2 million);
finance costs of HK$0.4 million (Year ended 31 December 2017:
HK$1.1 million); equity-settled share-based payment expenses of nil
(Year ended 31 December 2017: HK$13.7 million); impairment loss
recognised in respect of property, plant and equipment of nil (Year
ended 31 December 2017: HK$14.8 million); decrease in fair value of
investment properties of HK$26.7 million (Year ended 31 December
2017: HK$41.5 million); fair value loss on investments held for trading
of HK$9.4 million (Year ended 31 December 2017: HK$39.3 million);
and other expenses of HK$0.7 million (Year ended 31 December 2017:
other income of HK$0.6 million), offset by interest income of HK$4.0
million (Year ended 31 December 2017: HK$8.6 million); and income
tax credit of HK$66.2 million (Year ended 31 December 2017: income
tax credit of HK$2.6 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

The performance of the Group’s hotels and securities trading during
the year under audit, the commentary on the hotel sector and the
changes in general market conditions and the potential impact on
their operating performance and future prospects are contained in the

succeeding sections headed “Business Review” and “Prospects”.

BUSINESS REVIEW

(a) Hotel Investment

The hotel investment segment comprises three “Rosedale”
branded 4-star rated hotels located in Hong Kong, Guangzhou
and Shenyang and the Luoyang Golden Gulf Hotel. Overall
revenue generated from hotel investment increased by 4.2% to
HK$263.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 (Year
ended 31 December 2017: HK$252.3 million). The combined
average occupancy rate of the Group slightly decreased
by 0.7% to 74.8% for the year ended 31 December 2018
(Year ended 31 December 2017: 75.5%). If the operational
figures of our hotels are only compared with those of other
comparable hotels in similar categories, their performance
will be in line with market averages. The gross margin was
maintained at 40.4% or increased by 0.5% when compared
with the corresponding period in 2017 of 39.9%. To combat
the competitive environment, the Group will continue to invest
resources to enhancing its market network and positioning and,
in the meantime, will further streamline its business operations to

contain costs efficiently.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEEWA R DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED) ¥R EE ()
(b) Securities Trading (b) BHXEE

The segment recorded a loss of HK$9.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (Year ended 31 December 2017:
segment loss of HK$37.7 million), mainly representing fair value
loss of investments held for trading, as a result of mark to market

valuations as at the balance sheet date.

The Group has no immediate plans for material investments or
capital assets, other than those as disclosed in this section and

the succeeding section headed “Prospects”.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 31 December 2014, the Company entered into a framework
agreement (the “Framework Agreement”) with two independent third
parties (the “Vendors”) in relation to the possible acquisition of 51%
equity interests in a company owned by the Vendors (the “Possible
Acquisition”). Pursuant to the Framework Agreement, among other
things, (i) an exclusivity period of three months after the date of the
Framework Agreement was granted to the Company; and (ii) the
Company and the Vendors entered into a loan agreement for a short
term interest free loan of HK$75.0 million (the “Loan Agreement”) to
facilitate the Vendors to the acquisition of the entire entity interest
in a PRC registered company (the “PRC Company”) from all its
existing shareholders. The PRC Company owns a parcel of land in
Zhuhai, the PRC with a site area of 19,152.69 square metres. The PRC
Company also owns a hotel property on the aforesaid land known as
Zhuhai Lizhou Holiday Hotel. On 31 March 2015, 30 June 2015, 30
September 2015, 30 December 2015, 30 April 2016, 29 December
2016 and 22 June 2017, supplemental framework agreements and
extension letters were signed to further extend the exclusivity period
and the repayment date of the Loan Agreement to 30 June 2015, 30
September 2015, 31 December 2015, 29 April 2016, 31 December
2016, 30 June 2017 and 31 December 2017, respectively. No formal
agreement was entered into between the Company and the Vendors
by 31 December 2017, the Framework Agreement (as supplemented
by the aforesaid supplemental framework agreements) lapsed on 1
January 2018. Pursuant to the Loan Agreement (as supplemented by
the aforesaid extension letters), the interest free loan of HK$75 million
was repayable on 31 December 2017. On 29 December 2017, the
Vendors had repaid it in full to the Company. Further details of the
Possible Acquisition were disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 31 December 2014, 31 March 2015, 30 June 2015, 30
September 2015, 30 December 2015, 30 April 2016, 29 December
2016, 22 June 2017 and 2 January 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE WK D

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
(CONTINUED)

On 27 December 2017, the Company and independent third parties
(the “PRC Vendors”) entered into a share transfer agreement
(the "Agreement”), relating to a proposed acquisition (the
“Acquisition”) of the entire registered capital of a limited liability
company established in the PRC (the “Target”) at a consideration
of Renminbi (“RMB”)280.0 million (the “Consideration”, equivalent
to approximately HK$334.3 million). The Company paid the first
instalment of the Consideration of RMB20.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$24.8 million) to the PRC Vendors. The principal
asset of the Target is a resort property located at Guangdong Province,
which is an area with hot springs and forest in the proximity (the
“Resort Property”). The Resort Property occupies a site area of about
5,000 mu, of which 980 mu are for residential use, 2,200 mu are
for commercial use and 1,820 mu are for amenities. Pursuant to the
Agreement, the completion of the Acquisition was conditional upon
the fulfilment of a number of conditions by 30 April 2018. The PRC
Vendors, however refused and failed to cooperate with the Company
during the due diligence process, and as a result, the Company’s legal
and financial due diligence on the Target could not be finalised. On
27 April 2018, the Company has completed submitting the application
to the Guangzhou Arbitration Commission for arbitration of the
matter, seeking an arbitral award that, among other things, (i) the
PRC Vendors continue fulfilling the obligations under the Agreement;
(ii) the PRC Vendors to cooperate with the Company and provide all
necessary documents and information in order to complete the due
diligence work pursuant to the Agreement; (iii) the PRC Vendors to
cooperate with the Company to complete all conditions precedent
to the Agreement on or before 30 October 2018; and (iv) the PRC
Vendors to pay the default penalty under the Agreement and the
legal costs incurred to the Company. At the same time, the Company
has also been served an arbitration application, which together with
the arbitration application lodged by the Company as set out above
shall be referred to as (the “Arbitration Applications”) lodged by the
PRC Vendors demanding (i) termination of the Agreement; and (i)
payment by the Company for default penalty together with legal costs
and arbitration fee. On 27 September 2018, the Company entered
into a settlement agreement with the PRC Vendors, that terminating
the Agreement and withdrawing the Arbitration Applications, in
order to avoid litigation risks and expenses, and to focus on the
future development of the Company. The first instalment of the
Consideration of RMB20.0 million was fully refunded to the Company
before 31 December 2018. Further details were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 29 December 2017, 22 January
2018, 15 February 2018, 9 March 2018, 28 March 2018, 27 April
2018 and 27 September 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
(CONTINUED)

On 23 November 2018, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company (the “Subsidiary”) and an independent third party
(the “Purchaser”) entered into a disposal agreement (the “Disposal
Agreement”), in relation to the possible disposal of 60% equity
interests in Luoyang Golden Gulf Hotel Company Limited (the
“Target Company”), a limited liability company established in the
PRC and owned as to 60% by the Subsidiary at a consideration of
RMB61 million (equivalent to approximately HK$68.5 million) (the
“Consideration”). The Purchaser paid the Subsidiary RMB21 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$23.9 million) (the “Deposit”) upon
both parties signing of the Disposal Agreement. The Purchaser and
the Subsidiary shall enter into an escrow agreement and open an
escrow account (the “Escrow Account”) within 3 business days after
the shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting have
approved the Disposal Agreement. The remaining balance of the
Consideration of RMB40 million (equivalent to approximately HK$44.6
million), shall be deposited into the Escrow Account by the Purchaser
within 3 business days upon opening of such account. As at the date
of Disposal Agreement, the Target Company has leased out certain
spaces to tenants. Pursuant to the Disposal Agreement, the Subsidiary
has undertaken not to request the tenants for any advanced rental for
the next year. In the event the Target Company has received any such
advanced rental payment, the amount of the Consideration payable by
the Purchaser to the Subsidiary shall be reduced accordingly. Further
details were set out in the announcements of the Company dated 26
November 2018, 17 December 2018, 31 December 2018, 18 January

2019, 4 February 2019 and 8 March 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE WK D

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s cash and bank balances and
investments held for trading amounted to HK$1,866.8 million (31
December 2017: HK$1,823.7 million). The Group has no borrowings
as at each of 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

The Group’'s current assets and current liabilities as at 31 December
2018 were HK$1,945.0 million and HK$143.0 million (31 December
2017: HK$1,889.1 million and HK$185.1 million), respectively. As a
result, the current ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2018 was
13.6 (31 December 2017: 10.2). The gearing ratio as at 31 December
2018, expressed as a percentage of total borrowings to equity
attributable to owners of the Company, was nil (31 December 2017:

nil).

As at each of 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, over 95%
of the Group’s cash and bank balances and investments held for
trading were denominated in Hong Kong dollar and United States
dollar, approximately 4.6% (31 December 2017: 3.7%) were in
Renminbi and the balance of nil (31 December 2017: 0.8%) were in

other currencies.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group did not have any assets pledged for credit facilities as at

each of 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at each

of 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities and business
transactions were denominated in Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has not entered
into any hedging arrangements. However, the Group will actively
consider the use of relevant financial instruments to manage currency

exchange risks in line with our business development.

INTEREST RATE EXPOSURE

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group was not subject
to the risk of significant interest rate volatility. The Company will
continue to monitor the interest rate markets and actively consider the
application of relevant financial instruments to manage risks associated

with interest rates.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

At 31 December 2018, the Group had 623 employees of which 504
employees were stationed in the PRC. Employees’ remuneration
packages were determined in accordance with individual’s
responsibility, competence and skills, qualifications, experience and
performance as well as market pay-level. Staff benefits include training
programs, provident fund scheme, medical insurance and other

competitive fringe benefits.

To provide incentives and rewards to employees, the Company has
adopted a share option scheme for the eligible participants (including

employees).

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the hotel market shall continue to recover steadily but
the overall external economic environment is still posing uncertainties,
including the increased geopolitical tensions, tightened credit
conditions and the normalization of interest rates. It is also quite
obvious that the US-China trade tension is expected to continue and
raise uncertainties over both political and financial risks. Short term
fluctuations in the market are expected in 2019, but the longer term

outlook remains optimistic.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECTS (CONTINUED)

In order for the tourism industry to continue to develop in a vigorous
way, the support from the Government and its continuing commitment
to invest in infrastructural developments are most extremely
important. In Hong Kong, the two mega infrastructure projects, the
Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Hong Kong Express Rail Link (the “Express Rail
Link”) and the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge (the “HZM Bridge”)
were opened during the year under audit. A 142-kilometre route of
high-speed railway, the Express Rail Link connects Hong Kong with
the National High-speed Rail Network of over 25,000-kilometre in the
PRC; the HZM Bridge consists of 55-kilometre bridge and tunnel that
provides a new land transport link between the east and west coasts
of the Pearl River Delta region. Moreover, the two major theme parks
in Hong Kong, the Disneyland and the Ocean Park are both continuing
their expansions. In all, these infrastructure projects stimulate further
economic growth and will bring a positive impact on increasing

number of visitors to the both ends.

Riding on China’s growth story and under tough conditions over the
past few years with taking a wider and longer term view, and with
the core strength of the Group is built on its philosophy and strategy
that focusing on the development and maintenance of the portfolio of
hotels and other assets for the long term future, we believe our hotels
remain well placed in the markets that they operate and we expect
to perform in line with expectations in the coming year. Overall with
the Group is underpinned by a strong balance sheet comprising high
quality and conservatively valued assets coupled with a low level of
gearing, as well as our dedicated team of management and staff who
understand and respect our heritage and serve the Group with loyalty,
we remain cautiously optimistic about the prospects for tourism and
other markets that we are seeking to identify suitable investment
opportunities, continuing to chart a course which maximizing the
quality and value of our portfolio and creating win-win scenarios for

all stakeholders.
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Directors’ Profile
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Yap, Allan, aged 63, has been the Chairman of the Company
since December 2014. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of
the Company. Dr. Yap holds an honorary degree of Doctor of Laws
and has over 30 years’ experience in finance, investment and banking.
He was an executive director of the Company from 2002 to 2011.
Dr. Yap is a substantial shareholder, the chairman and an executive
director of Master Glory Group Limited (“Master Glory”, a substantial
shareholder of the Company), the shares of which are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK"”). In addition, he is the
chairman, chief executive officer and a director of China Enterprises
Limited (a substantial shareholder of the Company within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and an associate
company of Master Glory), the shares of which are traded on the
OTC Securities Marketplace in the United States of America. He is
also the executive chairman of Hanwell Holdings Limited and Tat
Seng Packaging Group Ltd., the shares of both companies are listed
on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. Dr. Yap was the
chairman, chief executive officer and a director of Burcon NutraScience
Corporation, the shares of which are listed on the Toronto Stock
Exchange in Canada and the Frankfurt Stock Exchange in Germany
and traded on the OTC Securities Marketplace in the United States
of America, until he resigned on 15 January 2019. He was also the
chairman and an executive director of Shaw Brothers Holdings Limited
and the honorary chairman and a non-executive director of SMI
Holdings Group Limited, the shares of both companies are listed on
the SEHK, until he resigned on 25 October 2016 and 28 November
2017 respectively.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Ms. Chan Ling, Eva, aged 53, has been the Managing Director of the
Company since June 2009. She is also the chairman of the Corporate
Governance Committee, a member of the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee of the Company, and a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Chan joined the Company
in May 2002. She is a member of Chartered Accountants Australia
and New Zealand, a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a practicing member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. She has over 30 years’ experience
in auditing, accounting and finance in both international accounting
firms and listed companies. Ms. Chan was the deputy chairman and
a director of China Enterprises Limited (“CEL"), which is a substantial
shareholder of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance and an associated company of Master
Glory Group Limited (a substantial shareholder of the Company), until
she resigned on 15 January 2019. The shares of CEL are traded on the
OTC Securities Marketplace in the United States of America.

Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis, aged 68, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since April 2002. He is a well-known actor,
master of ceremonies, and horseracing and soccer commentator.
Mr. Chan has over 38 years’ experience in the entertainment and film

industry in Hong Kong.
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Directors’ Profile
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva, aged 70, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since December 2002. He is
also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee, and a member of
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company. Mr. Kwok was a marketing
manager in an international company engaging in the design of
business administration system. He has over 36 years’ experience
in the insurance and investment business, principally in the senior
managerial position leading a sizable sales team. Mr. Kwok is an
independent non-executive director of Master Glory Group Limited
("Master Glory”), a substantial shareholder of the Company. He is also
an independent non-executive director of ITC Properties Group Limited
("ITC Properties”). The shares of Master Glory and ITC Properties are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert, aged 57, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since March 2007. He is also
the chairman of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee,
and a member of the Remuneration Committee and the Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company. Mr. Poon graduated from the
University of Bath, United Kingdom with a Master of Science degree in
Business Administration. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the CPA Australia.
Mr. Poon is an independent non-executive director of Master Glory
Group Limited, the shares of which are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK"”) and a substantial shareholder of the
Company. He is also an independent non-executive director of Shaw

Brothers Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the SEHK.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Mr. Sin Chi Fai, aged 59, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since January 2008. He is also a member
of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Sin is a director and a
shareholder of a Singapore company engaged in the distribution of
data storage media and computer related products in Asian countries.
He obtained a diploma in Banking from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
(now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) and is a
member of Singapore Institute of Directors. Mr. Sin has over 22 years’
sales and marketing experience in information technology industries
and in the banking field. He is an independent non-executive director
of Master Glory Group Limited (“Master Glory”), the shares of
which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and a
substantial shareholder of the Company. He is also an independent
director of China Enterprises Limited (a substantial shareholder of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and an associated company of Master Glory), the shares
of which are traded on the OTC Securities Marketplace in the United

States of America.
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Senior Management's Profile
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Mr. Lau Ka Kit, Ken, aged 47, has been the Financial Controller
of the Company since April 2015 and is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He has over 20 years of progressive
accounting experience through management roles for a variety of
public and private multinational corporations. Mr. Lau is a member
of CPA Australia and a certificate holder of American Institute of

Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. Law Sau Lai, aged 51, has been the Company Secretary of the
Company since August 2009. Ms. Law is an associate of The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. She has extensive experience in

company secretarial practice.
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Corporate Governance Report

INTRODUCTION

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited (“Company”) is committed to
achieving and maintaining a high standard of corporate governance
which is crucial to the development of the Company and can
safeguard the interests of its shareholders (“Shareholders”). The board
of directors of the Company (“Board” and “Directors” respectively)
has adopted various policies and procedures to ensure compliance
with the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
("CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). In the opinion of the Board, the
Company had complied with the code provisions of the CG Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2018 (“Year"”), except for
Code Provisions A.4.1. and E.1.2 with considered reasons explained

below.

CORPORATE STRATEGY AND LONG TERM BUSINESS
MODEL

The Company is principally engaged in the sector of hotel investment
in Hong Kong and in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). The
Company’s corporate objective is to create and enhance value for
Shareholders. To achieve this corporate objective, the business
strategies of the Company are to maintain the long term growth
and the profitability of the Company by developing and investing
in quality hotels in decent locations in Hong Kong and in the PRC.
Notwithstanding that the Company shall strive to further comprehend
its four-star rated business hotel network, it shall explore further
opportunities in the hospitality sector. The Company is committed
to maintaining a solid and healthy financial status with a solid
cash balance and an efficient debt/equity ratio that will enable
the Company to finance the existing operations and proceed with

potential investments.
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Corporate Governance Report
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises six Directors including three executive
Directors (“Executive Directors”) and three independent non-executive
Directors (“INEDs"”) whose biographical details are set out in the

“Directors’ Profile” on pages 14 to 17 of this annual report.

The Board is principally responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, “Group”) including
formulating strategies, establishing strategic directions, overseeing
the Group’s businesses and systems of risk management and internal
controls, monitoring operating and financial performance, setting
objectives and business development plans, and monitoring the

performance of senior management.

The Board has delegated operational decisions to the Executive
Directors led by the Managing Director. Daily operations and

administration are delegated to the management.

In addition, the Board has established the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Corporate Governance Committee to oversee particular aspects of the

Company'’s affairs.

The Board meets regularly each year to review the financial and
operating performance of the Group, and review and approve the
Group’s annual and interim results, and other matters which need to
be dealt with. Additional Board meetings will be held as and when
required. Resolutions in writing may be passed by all Directors in lieu

of a meeting pursuant to Bye-Laws of the Company (“Bye-Laws”).

During the Year, six full Board meetings (including four regular Board

meetings) were held.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The attendance of each Board member at the full meetings of the
Board and the annual general meeting of the Company held during

the Year is set out as follows:

TERERME

i% = mﬁ

EEFERERAFEANRTHERESS
ERLARABERBFAGZHFEBERAT ¢

Number of Meetings Attended/Held
HEBITEERE

Annual

Board General

Meeting Meeting

Name of Director EEHE BER RREFAS

Executive Directors HITES

Dr. Yap, Allan (Chairman) ExEFB LT (FE) 4/6 0/1

Ms. Chan Ling, Eva (Managing Director) BRIS 22+ (EFAATE) 6/6 1/1

Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis BRE RS- 5/6 0/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva Lt 6/6 1/1

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert % B 4 A 6/6 1/1

Mr. Sin Chi Fai RS 6/6 0/1

The Chairman also held a meeting with the INEDs without the
presence of the Executive Directors during the Year according to Code

Provision A.2.7 of the CG Code.

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE BOARD MEMBERS

None of the members of the Board has any relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relations) between

each other.
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Corporate Governance Report
TXRERME

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Company has purchased appropriate directors and officers liability
insurance in respect of legal actions against the Directors and officers

of the Group arising from the performance of his/her duties.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. The roles of the Chairman
and the Managing Director, who performs the function of chief
executive officer, are currently held by Dr. Yap, Allan and Ms. Chan
Ling, Eva separately. The Chairman is responsible for the leadership
of the Board while the Managing Director is responsible for the
operation of the business and performance of the Group and the
implementation of major strategies. The division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and the Managing Director of the Company is

clearly established and set out in writing.

Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code stipulates that the chairman of
the board should attend the annual general meeting. The Chairman of
the Company, Dr. Yap, Allan, was unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 7 June 2018 (“2018 AGM") as he
had other business engagement. Ms. Chan Ling, Eva, the Managing
Director of the Company, attended and took the chair of the 2018
AGM in accordance with Bye-Law 68 of the Bye-Laws and answered

questions from the Shareholders.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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Corporate Governance Report

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

According to Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop

and refresh their knowledge and skills.

During the Year, Directors were provided with materials on the
corporate governance and updates on the latest developments of
the Listing Rules for their reading. Directors were also provided with

monthly updates on the Group’s business and financial matters.

From time to time, the Company Secretary circulates details of
training courses which may be of interests to Directors. All Directors
are encouraged to attend the relevant training courses and seminars

organised by professional bodies at the Company’s expenses.

According to the records received by the Company, the Directors
(namely, Dr. Yap, Allan, Ms. Chan Ling, Eva, Mr. Chan Pak Cheung,
Natalis, Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva, Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert and
Mr. Sin Chi Fai) participated in continuous professional development
during the Year by reading materials provided by the Company.
Besides, Ms. Chan Ling, Eva and Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert had

attended seminars organised by professional bodies.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. The current independent non-executive Directors were not
appointed for a specific term. However, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
in accordance with Bye-Law 99 of the Bye-Laws. Every Director
is also subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years according to Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code. The Board
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company’s corporate governance practices are no less exacting than
those prescribed by Code Provision A.4.1, and therefore does not

intend to take any steps in this regard at the moment.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of the INEDs as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. On 28 March 2019, the Nomination Committee held a
meeting to assess the independence of INEDs. Taking into account
the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
the Nomination Committee considered that all INEDs remained

independent.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its own code for dealing in securities of the
Company by the Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries
with all Directors and they have confirmed their compliance with the

required standard set out in the Model Code during the Year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (”Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference in line with the CG

Code.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three INEDs, namely,
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert (Chairman of the Audit Committee),
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva and Mr. Sin Chi Fai.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are (i) to review the
financial information of the Company and to oversee the relationship
with the external auditor; (ii) to assist the Board to review the Group's
financial reporting system, and risk management and internal control
systems (including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group's
accounting and financial reporting function); and (iii) to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment

and removal of the external auditor.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Audit Committee held four meetings and had

performed the following work:

(1

to review the financial reporting matters including the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the interim
results for the six months ended 30 June 2018 and make

recommendations to the Board;

to approve the engagement letters of external auditor for the

audit of the 2017 annual results;

to make recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of

external auditor at the 2018 AGM,;

to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment of
Moore Stephens CPA Limited as external auditor of the Company
to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of Messrs.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu; and

to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management

and internal control systems of the Group.
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In addition, the Audit Committee passed one set of resolution in BN BRZEER - \FEBAT —H
writing in 2018 regarding the engagement letter of external auditor ~ ZERZ A BEIMNEXBAILER —T— \F
for the review of 2018 interim results. FHIEE TS -
The attendance of individual members at the meetings of the Audit &ERZEEXENAFEARNRITHNEH
Committee held during the Year is as follows: HEBRIAT

Number of Meetings

Attended/Held

Name of Audit Committee Member ERZEEHRBESR HE T BITEERE
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert % BN 5 A 4/4
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva Tkt 4/4
Mr. Sin Chi Fai AR AE 4/4

ABE/EIERER AR
201853



26

Corporate Governance Report
J/J‘_\ﬁkk #ﬁ =

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee
("Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of reference in line

with the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises two INEDs, namely
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
and Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert, and one Executive Director, namely,

Ms. Chan Ling, Eva.

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are (i)
to consider and to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and
senior management of the Company; (ii) to review and determine the
remuneration and compensation packages of the Executive Directors
and the senior management of the Company; and (iii) to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive

Directors.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting and

had performed the following work:

(1) to review the remuneration policy of the Company and the
remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and the senior

management of the Company; and

(2) to review and approve the proposed level of salary increase of
employees, including the senior management of the Company,

for 2019.

In addition, the Remuneration Committee passed two sets of
resolutions in writing in 2018 regarding the payment of discretionary
bonuses to the Managing Director and the senior management of the
Company for 2017, and the review of remuneration of INEDs for 2019

respectively.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The attendance of individual members at the meeting of the

Remuneration Committee held during the Year is set out below:
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Number of Meetings

Attended/Held

Name of Remuneration Committee Member FMEEERERSR HEBITEBRE
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva T kE 11
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert & B B 4 A 171
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva FRIZ 22 1 1/1

Directors are remunerated with reference to their respective duties and

responsibilities with the Company and prevailing market conditions.

During the Year, no Directors were involved in deciding his or her own

remuneration.

Details of emoluments of the Directors for the Year are disclosed in

note 11 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management for the

Year is within the following bands:
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) with written terms of reference in line with the CG
Code.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises two INEDs,
namely, Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert (Chairman of the Nomination
Committee), Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva and one Executive Director,

namely, Ms. Chan Ling, Eva.

The main responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are (i) to
review the structure, size and composition, and the diversity of the
Board at least annually with due regard to the Board Diversity Policy (as
defined below) and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the corporate strategy of the Company;
(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of the
Board having due regard to the Board Diversity Policy; (iii) to assess
the independence of INEDs; (iv) to review regularly the time required
from a Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company;
and (v) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors; (vi)
to review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and review the
measurable objectives, if any, that the Board has set for achieving
diversity on the Board, as well as assess the progress on achieving the
objectives; and (vii) to review the Board Nomination Policy (as defined

below), as appropriate.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held two meetings and

had performed the following work:

(1) to assess the independence of INEDs;

(2) to consider and make recommendations to the Board on the
re-appointment of retiring Directors at the 2018 AGM,;

(3) to review the structure, size and composition of the Board in

light of the Board Diversity Policy; and

(4) to review the time required from a Director to perform his/her

responsibilities to the Company.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (coNTINUED)

The attendance of individual members at the meetings of the

Nomination Committee held during the Year is as follows:

ﬁﬁg* #&m
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Number of Meetings

Attended/Held

Name of Nomination Committee Member REZEERENS HEBITEBRE
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert EEE A 2/2
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva PRI EE 2/2
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva PRI 22+ 2/2

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board recognizes the importance of diversity in relation to its
business, and has adopted a Board diversity policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) to guide the Board in achieving its diversity in terms of
gender, age, educational background, skills, knowledge, professional
experience and length of service in order to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will give adequate consideration to the

Board Diversity Policy when recommending candidates to the Board.

Board appointments will be based on merit, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria with due regard for the benefits

of diversity each candidate can bring to the overall Board composition.

In reviewing and assessing the composition of the Board, the
Nomination Committee will consider the benefits of all aspects of

diversity, including but not limited to, those described above.

Having reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and taken into account
the existing composition of the Board and the business nature of the
Group, the Nomination Committee considered that the requirements
of the Board Diversity Policy has been met and the Board has not set

any measurable objectives for implementing the Policy

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness, and recommend any required

revisions to the Board for approval.
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BOARD NOMINATION POLICY

The

Nomination Committee has adopted a Board nomination policy

("Nomination Policy”) which set out the selection criteria and

nomination procedures to identify, select and recommend candidates

for Directors.

The

Nomination Committee shall consider the following factors in

assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate for directorship or for

proposed re-appointment of a Director:

integrity;

qualifications including skills, knowledge and professional
experience that are relevant to the Company’s business and

corporate strategy;

commitment to devote sufficient time in carrying out duties as a

Director;

Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives adopted by

the Board for achieving diversity on the Board;
for a proposed appointment of an INED, whether the candidate
would be considered independent with reference to the

independent guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

in the case of a proposed re-appointment of an INED, the number

of years he/she has already served; and

potential/actual conflict of interest that may create.

These factors are not meant to be exhaustive and decisive. The

Nomination Committee may consider such other factors that may

enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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BOARD NOMINATION POLICY (CONTINUED)

The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the proposal on
appointment of a new director made by any Board members and the
biographical information (or relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate
such candidate based on the nomination criteria set out above and
make recommendation for the Board’'s consideration and approval.
The Board will decide the appointment based on the recommendation

of the Nomination Committee.

For re-appointment of retiring Directors, the Nomination Committee
will review the overall service to the Company of the retiring Director
who wishes to stand for re-election at the general meeting, including
the attendance of Board and Board committee meetings, and the level
of participation and performance on the Board during his/her term.
The Nomination Committee will also review and determine whether
the retiring Director continues to meet the nomination criteria set
out above. The Nomination Committee will make recommendation
to the Board and the Board will then make recommendation to the
Shareholders in respect of the proposed re-election of Director at the

general meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company has established a corporate governance committee
("Corporate Governance Committee”) with written terms of reference

in line with the CG Code.

The Corporate Governance Committee currently comprises two INEDs,
namely, Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva and Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert and
one Executive Director, namely, Ms. Chan Ling, Eva (Chairman of the

Corporate Governance Committee).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
(CONTINUED)

The main responsibilities of the Corporate Governance Committee
are (i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;
(ii) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; (iii) to review and
monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; and (iv) to review the Company’s
compliance with the Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance

Report.

During the Year, the Corporate Governance Committee held two

meetings and had performed the following work:

(1) to review the Company’s practices on corporate governance and
the Company’s practices in compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

(2) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code for the
year ended 31 December 2017 and for the six months ended 30
June 2018 and disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report

and the interim report; and

(3) to review the training and continuous professional development
of Directors.
The attendance of individual members at the meetings of the

Corporate Governance Committee held during the Year is as follows:

Name of Corporate Governance
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Number of Meetings

Held/Attended

Committee Member TCEERZEERBNSR HEBITEERE
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva BRIC 22+ 2/2
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert % B A A 2/2
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva L 2/2
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements for each financial period which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the financial
performance and cash flows for such financial period. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the Year, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
and made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable. The Directors have prepared the consolidated financial

statements for the Year on a going concern basis.

Auditor’s Responsibilities and Remuneration

During the Year, the fee payable to Moore Stephens CPA Limited
("Moore Stephens”), the auditor of the Company, for audit services
and non-audit services were approximately HK$2,880,000 and
HK$1,100,000 respectively. On the other hand, the fees paid to
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohamatsu, the ex-auditor of the Company,
for audit services and non-audit services were approximately

HK$3,816,000 and HK$2,953,000 respectively.

The statement of Moore Stephens regarding its reporting
responsibilities are set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on

page 58.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibility to ensure the
Group, setting appropriate policies and maintaining its effectiveness of
the internal control and risk management systems. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not absolute,

assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (CONTINUED)

Risk Management and Internal Controls (CONTINUED)

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee evaluates the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems of
the Company, the main features including the reliability of financial
reporting, effectiveness and efficiency of operations, compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs and budgets as well.
The process includes identification, evaluation, management measures
and control and review. Meetings are held regularly to review the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems, to
identify any significant management and operational risks as well as

control failings or weaknesses.

During the Year, the Company has outsourced its internal control
audit function to an independent accounting firm covering the review
of key internal controls in selected areas based on key operational,
financial and compliance risks as identified under the risk management
framework and as advised by the Audit Committee and the
management. The independent accounting firm is staffed with persons
with relevant qualifications and experience. They reported directly and
primarily to the Audit Committee and assist the Board in monitoring
and managing the risks and internal controls of the Group. They
also planned their internal audit schedules in consultation with, but
independently of the management. The Audit Committee reviewed
the activities of the independent accounting firm on a regular basis,
including the overseeing and monitoring of the implementation
improvements on the weaknesses of the system of internal controls

within the Group.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (CONTINUED)

Risk Management and Internal Controls (CONTINUED)

In accordance with the internal control audit plan, the independent
accounting firm has conducted an annual review of the effectiveness
of the Company’s system of internal controls. Weaknesses in
internal controls and recommendations for areas of improvements
have been reported to the Audit Committee. Following the receipt
of such recommendations, the Company has fully implemented
the recommendations to further strengthen the risk management
framework and internal control system during 2018. The Audit
Committee was satisfied that there were no significant control failings,
weaknesses or significant areas of concern identified during the Year
which might affect Shareholders. It concluded that an adequate
and effective internal control system is maintained to safeguard the

Shareholders’ investment and the Group's assets.

The Audit Committee has also reviewed the effectiveness and
adequacy of the internal control audit function and the Audit
Committee considers that the internal control audit function is

adequately resourced.

Framework for Disclosure of Inside Information

The Company has adopted a policy on Disclosure of Inside Information
which set out the procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information in a timely manner pursuant to
Rules 13.09 and 13.10 of the Listing Rules and the Inside Information

Provision under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

SEEARE

BEREBEZ®
EEEERAIPERE &)

RIFAMEZTELE  ZBILEFMER
P2 BLAR R B2 M BF EE 12 I R 2 X BUE 1T
Eigel - NEBEIE 2 B R B EAE 2 2
HZOBREERZEG - RRIIZER®R K&
RANZE-NFE2EE M ZEHEAE—
T AR ERERRAREEHE o Fh
ZEEEMARAFEAL BB REERR
TRZEXAJESFERRZ HRER K
H G AR E S ™A B A ED B4 6 Z A
REBRRZBERAEBEZEE -

Xy

o

ERZZEe RN AMEEEZBEZX
BEREEBRH MBELEZEER/ANMERE
% &

NEHEREESR

RARERMABEERBERE &7
BRI N EREERIRE ETRAIE13.0918 &
F13.1016 A R B F K& B S 1& B BEXIVASE 2
REEBBEXzABEENHEERRF LA

.

ABE/EIERER AR
201853

35



36

Corporate Governance Report

i

EERRE

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy with no fixed dividend

payouts. The actual dividend that the Board may recommend or

declare in respect of any particular financial year or period is subject

to a number of factors and at the discretion of the Board.

The Board will take into account the following factors when

considering the payment of dividends:

(a)

(9)

the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;

the level of retained earnings and distributable reserves of the

Company;

the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity

and the relevant financial covenants;

any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by

the Group’s lenders;

the Group's expected working capital requirements and future

expansion plans;
general economic conditions, and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial

performance and position of the Company; and

any other factors deemed relevant by the Board.

The payment of dividends is also subject to any restrictions under

Bermuda laws and the Bye-Laws.

The Board will review the dividend policy from time to time.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company. During the
Year, the Company Secretary complied with the relevant professional

training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company acknowledges the importance of communicating with
Shareholders. The Board has adopted a Shareholders’ communication
policy setting out formal channels of communication with

Shareholders.

The Company maintains continuing communication with Shareholders
through a number of channels including financial reports (interim and
annual reports), announcements, annual general meetings and other
general meetings that may be convened as well as other documents

submitted to the Stock Exchange.

Information relating to the Group is available on the Company’s

website at www.rhh.com.hk.

The Company uses general meetings as a tool to effectively
communicate with Shareholders and provide Shareholders with the

opportunity of asking questions on any relevant matters.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings of the
Company or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and

on their behalf if they are unable to attend the meetings.

Directors, appropriate management executives and the external
auditor are available at the annual general meetings of the Company

to answer Shareholders’ questions.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries
Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong. Shareholders may at any time send enquiry(ies) to the Board in
writing by mail to the head office and principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at Room 3401, 34th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, for the attention of the

Company Secretary or by email to info@rhh.com.hk.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general

meetings of the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special
General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
registered Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of such of the paid-up
capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit carries the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company, may request the Board

to convene a special general meeting.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
be signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited at the registered office
of the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda for the attention of the Company Secretary and may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more

requisitionists.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special
General Meeting (CONTINUED)

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong and upon confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will arrange with the
Board to convene a special general meeting by serving sufficient notice
to all Shareholders in accordance with the requirements set out in the

Listing Rules and the Bye-Laws.

In the event that the requisition has been verified as not in order,
the requisitionist(s) concerned will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, a special general meeting will not be convened as

requested.

If the Board does not within twenty-one (21) days from the date of
the deposit of a valid requisition, proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more than one
half (50%) of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the said date of deposit of
the requisition. A general meeting so convened by the requisitionist(s)
shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible as that in

which meetings are to be convened by the Board.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward
Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to Section 79 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
either (i) any number of registered Shareholders representing not less
than one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting rights of all Shareholders
having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the general
meeting of the Company to which the requisition relates; or (ii) not
less than one hundred (100) of such Shareholders, can submit a

requisition in writing to the Company:

(a) to give to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of next annual
general meeting notice of any resolution (other than a proposal
for election as a Director) which may properly be moved and is

intended to be moved at that meeting; and

(b) to circulate Shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than one
thousand (1,000) words with respect to the matter referred to in
any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that

meeting.

The written requisition must be signed by the requisitionist(s) (may
consist of one or several documents in like form, each signed by one
or more requisitionists) and deposited at the registered office of the
Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda for the attention of the Company Secretary with a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses and
not less than six weeks before the annual general meeting in case of
a requisition requiring notice of resolution or not less than one week
before the general meeting in case of any other requisition. Provided
that if an annual general meeting is called for a date six weeks or
less after the requisition has been deposited, the copy though not
deposited within the time required shall be deemed to have been

properly deposited for the purposes thereof.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward
Proposals at General Meetings (CONTINUED)

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong and upon confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will arrange with the
Board to include the resolution in the agenda for the annual general

meeting or circulating the statement for the general meeting.

In the event that the requisition is not in order or the requisitionist(s)
concerned have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the
Company’s expenses for the said purpose, the requisitionist(s)
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the
proposed resolution will not be included in the agenda for the annual
general meeting or the statement will not be circulated for the general

meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person
for Election as a Director

As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election as
a Director, please refer to the procedures made available on the

Company’s website at www.rhh.com.hk.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

No amendments were made to the Company’'s Memorandum of

Association and Bye-Laws during the Year.
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Report of the Directors

EFEWE

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) present their report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively “Group”) for the year ended 31 December

2018 ("Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the business of hotel operation and
trading of securities. Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2018 are set out in note 35 to the consolidation

financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages

69 and 70 of this annual report.

The board of Directors (“Board”) has resolved not to recommend a

final dividend for the Year (2017: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business, a description of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of important events
affecting the Group’s business that have occurred since the end of
the financial year 2018 and a discussion on future development in
the Group's business are set out in the Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 2 to 13 respectively of this annual report. Also,
details of financial risks are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements. The aforesaid discussions form part of this report

of the Directors.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it engages from time to
time. The Group achieves this through rational resources utilisation
and compliance with applicable environmental laws and practices of
environmental protection, health and safety, workplace conditions
and employment. The Group continues to improve the environmental
performance as an integral and fundamental part of the business

strategy and operating methods.

A separate environmental, social and governance report is expected
to be published on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and the Company no later than three

months after the publication of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations. Sufficient resources and training have been allocated
and provided to ensure the on-going compliance with those applicable
laws and regulations. During the year ended 31 December 2018 and
up to the date of this report, the Board was unaware of any incidence
of non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group’s business where the Group is

operating.

RELATIONSHIP WITH MAJOR STAKEHOLDERS

The Group is committed to operate in a sustainable manner while
balancing the interests of its various stakeholders including customers,
suppliers and employees. During the year ended 31 December
2018 and up to the date of this report, there were no material and
significant disputes between the Group and its key stakeholders. The
Group will continue to ensure effective communication and maintain

good relationship with each of its key stakeholders.
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EFEWE

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group for the past five years is set out on

page 193 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the

Year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

In addition to the accumulated profits, under The Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus is also available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of contributed surplus, if there are reasonable grounds

for believing that:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as

they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium account.

In the opinion of the Directors, the reserves of the Company which
were available for distribution to shareholders of the Company

("Shareholders”) at 31 December 2018 were nil (2017: nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES OF THE GROUP

Particulars of the properties of the Group as at 31 December 2018 are
set out on pages 194 to 196 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Dr. Yap, Allan (Chairman)
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva (Managing Director)
Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert
Mr. Sin Chi Fai

In accordance with Bye-Law 99 of the Bye-Laws of the Company
("Bye-Laws"”) and Code Provision A.4.2 of the Corporate Governance
Code (“CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of the Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”),
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva and Mr. Sin Chi Fai shall retire from office by
rotation at the 2019 annual general meeting of the Company (“2019
AGM"). Mr. Sin Chi Fai, being eligible, has offered himself for
re-election. Ms. Chan Ling, Eva will not offer herself for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2019 AGM has a service
contract with the Group which is not determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws and subject to the provisions of the statutes,
the Directors shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them may sustain or incur
in or about the execution of the duty of their respective offices or in
relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate Directors and
officers liability insurance for the Directors and officers of the Group
during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were

entered into or existed during the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 30 May 2013, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(“Scheme”) which is valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 3 June 2013 (the date on which the last condition
to the Scheme was satisfied) until 2 June 2023, subject to early

termination by the Company in general meeting or by the Board.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme, when aggregated with any shares subject
to any other schemes of the Company, is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the date of adoption
of the Scheme (“Scheme Mandate Limit”) unless the Company obtains
an approval from Shareholders in a general meeting to refresh the
Scheme Mandate Limit provided that the Scheme Mandate Limit
so refreshed must not exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue as at the date of approval of refreshment by Shareholders.
Nevertheless, the maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
not yet exercised under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the issued shares of

the Company from time to time.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

At the special general meeting of the Company held on 1 June 2017,
Shareholders approved the refreshment of the Scheme Mandate
Limit. As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
options available for granting by the Company under the Scheme was
78,921,104, representing 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
on that date.

The number of shares of the Company in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme and other share option scheme(s)
of the Company to any Participant in aggregate in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any grant of
further options above this limit shall be subject to the requirements

under the Listing Rules.

Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder of the
Company or any Independent Non-executive Director, or any of their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), would result
in the number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted to such person in 12-month

period up to and including the date of such grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of the

Company in issue; and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
shares of the Company on the date of each grant in excess of

HK$5 million;

such grant of options shall be subject to approval of Shareholders in

general meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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EFEWE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The subscription price of the options under the Scheme will be a price
determined by the Board, in its absolute discretion, but in any case

will not be lower than the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of

grant, which must be a trading day;

(i) the average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five

trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of

grant.

Further details of the Scheme are set out in note 27 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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EEEWE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) BREE @
Details of the movements of the share options under the Scheme NAREERN  ZtEE THEIRE 2 Se st
during the Year are as follows: BT
Number of share options
BREHR
Outstanding Cancelled/ ~ Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised lapsed as at Exercise
1 January during during during 31 December Date of price Exercise
Eligible participant 2018 the Year the Year the Year 2018 Grant per share period
HKS
RZB-N\E
RZB-NE 128
~ -4-8  REEE  MAEE  WAEE =1-B ] ]
RERSRE HATE REH RTE Wik /&N BT REBE ﬁ&h%@ i3
BT
Directors
Dr. Yap, Allan 7,800,000 - - - 7,800,000 24.4.2017 0.590 24.4.2017-23.4.2022
ERBET
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva 7,800,000 - - - 7,800,000 24.42017 0.590 24.4.2017-23.4.2022
Rrent
Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 24.4.2017 0.590 24.4.2017-23.4.2022
REkEE
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva 500,000 - - - 500,000 24.42017 0.590 24.4.2017-23.4.2022
PEURE
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert 500,000 - - - 500,000 24.4.2017 0.590 24.4.2017-23.4.2022
REERE
Mr. Sin Chi Fai 500,000 - - - 500,000 2442017 0.590 24.4.2017-23.4.2022
AR
Employee(s) 500,000 - - - 500,000 24.4.2017 0.590 24.4.2017-23.4.2022
8T
Other eligible participants 46,000,000 - - - 46,000,000 2442017 0.590 24.4.2017-23.4.2022
R ERS 5L
Total 65,600,000 - - - 65,600,000
@it
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EFEWE

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” above,
at no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,

the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests or short positions of the
Directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) (a) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of
the SFO; or (b) as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to

the Listing Rules were as follows:

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

Report of the Directors

EEEWE

EENKRO - HEARKRG RES

IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND ZREHRMAXAE @)
DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

Long positions in the shares and the underlying

shares of the Company

RAERARGEEBARG 2HFR

Approximate
percentage
of the issued

Number of share capital

Capacity/Nature Number of underlying of the

Name of Director of interest shares held shares held Total Company

(Note 1) (Note 2)

ERQFAE

P& e BITRAEAZ

B8 5/ REEtE FrERAEE RBEE FoR ] OB

(Hiat1) (Bi7t2)

Dr. Yap, Allan Beneficial owner - 7,800,000 7,800,000 0.99%
EREEL EnBAA

Ms. Chan Ling, Eva Beneficial owner - 7,800,000 7,800,000 0.99%
RIS 2+ EnBAA

Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis Beneficial owner - 2,000,000 2,000,000 0.25%
BR BSR4 EREAA

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva Beneficial owner - 500,000 500,000 0.06%
Tk E EREAA

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert Beneficial owner - 500,000 500,000 0.06%
& B B o A EREAA

Mr. Sin Chi Fai Beneficial owner - 500,000 500,000 0.06%
AL EnBAA

Notes: WE -

EEENANRAMEBBROAES 2 #a
BRARRRLZBRE  ARABER
EXERES] & -

1. All Directors’ interests in the underlying shares of the Company were 1.
in respect of the share options granted by the Company, details of
which are set out under the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
above.

2. Based on a total of 789,211,046 issued shares of the Company as at 2. REAR —N\FE+=A _Jr =]
31 December 2018. zaﬁfﬁﬁﬂ‘ﬁ@%ww 211,046 5+ &

BREXBEEEN RZT-NF+A
Directors had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying = CEEBERNAQFSEEREE
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated (FE&RFEH RSO EXVE) 2k - 48
& 9 &fi%?qj%ﬁﬁﬂﬁéﬁniu\% kA
B (a)t SN IR IR B 5 R I E 1501
2B BT HEF 2 EZMA ()R IEZE
Al 7B A& AR A R B T

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the

2

corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (a) as recorded

e
B
><\L

in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or

(b) as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

fiF A

4}

pursuant to the Model Code.
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EFEWE

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group during
the Year or existed at the end of the Year except for the share options

as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” above.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

As at 31 December 2018, interests of the Directors, other than
independent non-executive Directors, in competing businesses required

to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules were as

PR SR 5 80 1

B EXTRE AT &) — BN AT iR 3R M) B A
Sh  ARBRAFE AN HRNAFE S RE
BEERT S A R A B0

EERNBAHRFENER 2ES
R-B—N\E+-A=+—0 RELTH

AIEBIORATHEEST (BUFNTES
BRI BBRFUERB 2 EENT

follows:
Description of

Name of entity which businesses of the entity

business are considered which are considered to

to compete or likely to compete or likely to
Name of compete with the compete with the Nature of interest of the
Director businesses of the Group businesses of the Group Director in the entity

HEBHERRELERE 2 HEBERABRLAERZ

XBERFUITRELRTEYE XBERFIHEITEE
EEEB 2ERER BREHCEREM EESRZER RRTE
Dr. Yap, Allan Master Glory Group Limited Trading of securities Chairman and an executive director,

and its subsidiaries and a substantial shareholder

BEREHE L GEEBBR AT BHEE FE BITEF

Ko B 2 A

As the Board is independent from the boards of the above mentioned
entities, the Group is capable of carrying on its business independently

of, and at arm’s length from the business of those entities.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER

PERSONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of persons,
other than Directors, in the shares and underlying shares of the

Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section

Report of the Directors

ESERE

FERRRHEMALTARG R
MHER D 2 Em K

NN
R T2

REE-NF+_A=1t—H REEHFX
HIERpIE3B6irMBEFZECMAME &
FUSNA TR AR BB R ABR R R

336 of the SFO were as follows: IR RORA T ¢
Long positions in the shares of the Company RAEARATIRDZHE
Approximate
percentage
Capacity/ of the issued
Nature Number of share capital of
Name of Shareholder Notes of interest shares held the Company
5%/ EARABE BT
RRERB Mz RRME FEROBE REAZBHNESL
(@)  Master Glory Group Limited ("“MGG") 1 Interest of controlled 148,506,000 18.82%
corporation
JESEFRAR(HNEEE]) REEEER
Master Glory Group (B.V.1.) Limited ("MGG BVI") 1 Interest of controlled 148,506,000 18.82%
corporation
REEEER
Master Glory Investment Group Limited ("MGIG") 1 Interest of controlled 148,506,000 18.82%
corporation
JERASEARAA(GNERESE]) REEEER
Leaptop Investments Limited (“Leaptop”) 1 Interest of controlled 148,506,000 18.82%
corporation
REEEER
Asia Will Limited (“AWL") 1 Beneficial owner 148,506,000 18.82%
BEERARBE] BREAA
(b)  China Enterprises Limited (“CEL") 2 Interest of controlled 48,660,424 6.17%
corporation
REEEER
Cosmos Regent Ltd. 2 Beneficial owner 43,325,554 5.49%

EalEAA

HEBEERERAE

20185 3R
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EFEWE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions in the shares of the Company
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(1) AWL, which held 148,506,000 shares of the Company, was
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Leaptop which was in turn a
wholly-owned subsidiary of MGIG. MGIG was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of MGG BVI which was in turn wholly-owned by MGG.
Accordingly, Leaptop, MGIG, MGG BVI and MGG were deemed to be
interested in 148,506,000 shares of the Company held by AWL.

(2) CEL was deemed to be interested in 48,660,424 shares of the
Company through its interest in its wholly-owned subsidiaries,
Cosmos Regent Ltd. and Million Good Limited, which held
43,325,554 shares of the Company and 5,334,870 shares of the
Company respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Company
had not been notified of any other persons who had interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the

SFO.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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148,506,0004% X * TMLeaptopfl
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BB EEAMGG BVIZ2EMEB A A
MGG BVIRIHEEEE2EH®E - Et -
Leaptop * SLEHEEE - MGG BVI Fl2E
£5 l%&%ﬁf’ﬁ%ﬁ 5 & P45 5 148,506,000
[N MR

(2) FBERZEMNE A FCosmos Regent
Ltd. X Million Good Limited (% 33 A&
43,325,554 7K A A IR 15 &% 5,334,870
BAEARBRG) cEaMERIEER
48,660,424 AN R FIRMD 2 = o
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Changes in information of Directors required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the date of the 2018

interim report are as follows:

Ms. Chan Ling, Eva

A discretionary bonus for the Year amounted to HK$600,000 was paid
to Ms. Chan in January 2019.

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert

With effect from 1 January 2019, the director’'s fee of Mr. Poon was
changed from HK$60,000 per annum to HK$80,000 per annum and
an additional fee for being the Chairman of the Audit Committee of
the Company was changed from HK20,000 per annum to HK$40,000

per annum.

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva

The director's fee of Mr. Kwok was changed from HK$60,000 per
annum to HK$80,000 per annum with effect from 1 January 2019.

Mr. Sin Chi Fai

The director’s fee of Mr. Sin was changed from HK$60,000 per annum
to HK$80,000 per annum with effect from 1 January 2019.

Other updated information regarding the Directors required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules is set out in

the Directors’ Profile on pages 14 to 17 of this annual report.
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EFEWE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

PROVIDENT FUND SCHEMES

Particulars of the Group’s provident fund schemes are set out in note

28 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws or
the appliable laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate amount of purchases and turnover attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers and customers were less than 30% of

the total value of the Group’s purchases and turnover respectively.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules as at the date of

this annual report.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group did not make any charitable donations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details on the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 19 to 41 of this annual

report.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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AUDITOR

During the Year, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as the
auditor of the Company and Moore Stephens CPA Limited (“Moore
Stephens”) was appointed by the Directors to fill the casual vacancy so

arising.

Moore Stephens will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for
re-appointment at the 2019 AGM. Having approved by the Board
upon the Audit Committee’s recommendation, a resolution for the
re-appointment of Moore Stephens as auditor of the Company will be

proposed at the 2019 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

YAP, ALLAN
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB AR

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ROSEDALE HOTEL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HEBEERERAF

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Rosedale
Hotel Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 69 to 192,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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801-806 Silvercord, Tower 1,
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

T +852 2375 3180
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements
which describes the uncertainties related to the extension of business
licence period of Rosedale Hotel Guangzhou Co., Ltd. (“Rosedale
Guangzhou”), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, whose business licence to operate its hotel expired on 15
January 2017. Should the Group be unable to successfully extend the
business licence period, the hotel operations of Rosedale Guangzhou
may be affected and further impairment of the hotel property and
related assets may be required. Our opinion is not modified in respect

of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.
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B A2 AR

Key Audit Matters (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

BREITEE

Impairment assessment of hotel properties

B 2 B8 FF I

We identified the impairment assessment of the Group’s
hotel properties, which are included in property, plant
and equipment (note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements) as a key audit matter due to the significance
of the balance of hotel properties to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, combined with the
judgements involved in estimating their recoverable
amounts. The Group’s hotel properties are located in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and the Group
incurred segment loss of HK$12,205,000 from hotel
operations during the year ended 31 December 2018.
No impairment loss in respect of hotel properties were
recognised during the year. As at 31 December 2018,
the carrying values of the hotel properties amounted to
HK$278,482,000.

B EEEBAEYEGIAME BBENREZE(FEE
BB MRMEES)) ZRENEBEN REAREFEFR R
ARBEEME EHREGEANBHRREBISE - M
FRFBEYEZARBSER SR AEH - E5EH
ZBEEDELRFEAREME ((THE]D - MREE—
E-N\F+ZRA=+-BIFE - ESEEBEXES
B4 B & 812,205,000/ 7T - AFE I E BB EME
BRAEEE R_Z-—N\F+_A=+—8H BEEDY
¥ 2 BRI A /3278,482,0008 7T °
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FAREEITEE(®)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

MW ESF O ASERESFEHETER

Our procedures in relation to management'’s assessment on
the recoverable amounts of hotel properties included:

BAENEEEEBEEYEATROSRFH2BFEE

e understanding management’s process for estimating
the cash flow projections and financial budgets;

BREBEAAARSRERARMBEEE ZIZF |

° evaluating the competence, experience and objectivity
of the Valuer as well as the appropriateness of the
Valuer's scope of work;
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Key Audit Matters (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

B ETEE

Impairment assessment of hotel properties (CONTINUED)
JEIEYEZ HIEFTIG (&)

Management reviewed the recoverable amount of each
hotel property at the end of the reporting period by
estimating the value-in-use of these hotel properties
with assistance of an independent qualified valuer (the
“Valuer”) not connected with the Group to determine
the amount of impairment required to write down
these hotel properties to their recoverable amounts.
The value-in-use of the hotel properties are dependent
on certain key inputs including gross profit margin,
future revenue growth rates, terminal growth rates and
discount rates of the hotel properties.

EREERZIRAENERE2RPERB 2 KOS
TERESR BEEBYEBEZBEYAEBMGER ([
BERD BT - et SEBENEZEREE  AETE
MU S BEMEMRETRE S ERTZRESE B
EMEZERBERANE THRBARE  SFBE
MEZEMK - RRPAERE  HRIBRERF XK -
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FAREETTEE )

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNEF N AHBERESFBHETER

evaluating the historical accuracy of the management'’s
assessment of the cash flow projections by comparing
the historical estimates to actual performance in
current year; and
AHEEREERENR S RERB P ER 2 EMEE - 7
ERFEBEMTEAFE 2 ERRBELR - K

evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology, the discount rates and terminal growth
rates used; and the reasonableness of the gross profit
margin, future revenue growth rates and terminal
growth rates with reference to the historical financial
data, financial budgets and available industry and
market data.

2EREMBEE  MBIEERAETE RTSEE
HEPTAMERE BBEXRRGRERRZEEMN
REME  RERBPABREREBIERE AN -
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B A2 AR

Key Audit Matters (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

B ETEE

Valuation of investment properties

REYEZ151E

We identified the valuation of investment properties
as a key audit matter due to the significance of the
balance to the consolidated financial statements as
a whole, combined with the judgements involved in
determining the fair value. The Group’s investment
properties represent a completed complex for
commercial use located in the PRC. As at 31 December
2018, the carrying value of the Group’s investment
properties amounted to HK$130,000,000 and a
decrease in fair value of HK$26,704,000 has been
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income during the year.
BB REYEZHERNASBRETEFE  REARK
EMELHEBBEAVBRREBZEZE MWLM
AREMEZATFEET SR ZHAE - EEEZRE
MERKR —BURTHREBERAEGZGEEE - R -F
—NF+ZA=+—HB  EXEKREVEZEREER
130,000,000 7T - R FAMGZR S ERE R A M2 KR
KA EHERBRTFEERL 26,704,000/ T

All of the Group's investment properties are stated at
fair value based on valuation performed by the Valuer.
The fair value is derived by using direct comparison
approach.
ESE2TREMEORBHEMET 2 HEMRR
FEEIE AFEERAERELBUESE -
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FAREETTEIE(®)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNESF O AHERESFSHETER

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the appropriateness

of the valuation of investment properties included:

BAENFTEREMEGBEZSBEEZEFEE

° evaluating the competence, experience and objectivity
of the Valuer as well as the appropriateness of the
Valuer's scope of work;

FHEGER 2 A 8 EREREFBIEARMGERM TIEEHE

=5 o< A .
ELEAE

° reviewing the valuation report issued by the Valuer and
understanding from management and the Valuer on
the valuation basis, methodology used and underlying
assumptions applied;
EREEMMEL 2 hERSTEMERERGERMT
ARG (EERE - PTRTEARATER 2 HRERR



Key Audit Matters (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

HEETEE

Valuation of investment properties (CONTINUED)
REYEZ (418 (&)

Details of the valuation techniques and significant
inputs used in the valuation are disclosed in note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements. The valuation of
investment properties are dependent on certain inputs,
including price per square metre of the comparable
market transactions and adjusting factors on locations
and remaining operating period.
HERMEGEEMAZEI2BABBZABERES M
BRRM T 16WE - REVEZHETORNE T8
BiE - BEALBRMESERXSTNEFHAKER  ARE
UERGTITREHEHEHABRRE -

IS

Other Matter

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

FAREETTEE )

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNESF A ERESFEHETER

e  evaluating the reasonableness of the underlying data
including price per square meter of comparable market
transactions being used by the Valuer and adjusting
factors on locations and remaining operating period;
and
FHEEBE SR 2 ST - BIEMGER TR Z AT LR m
BRGHNE T REEAREMLE RFSLE G
ZHREBEY K

e re-performing market research and analysis to assess
whether the changes in fair value of investment
properties that resulted from the valuation was
reasonable and consistent with the market trends to
our knowledge.
ENETHSERRARS T AN EEEEEZREDER
FREZHEEEELRETERMAAZTSBE —
By o

Hib= 18]

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended E&BEHZEZE—_T—tHF+_A=T—HILtFE
31 December 2017 were audited by another auditor who expressed an ~ Z#&R& M MK LS —ZEBAMEZ - ZZH
unmodified opinion on those statements on 27 March 2018. MR- N\F=ZA =T EAHZFRREE

BEFIRR -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB AR

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions

of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

18 M A2 B AR
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB AR

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion

on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (CONTINUED)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for

our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit

and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement

that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships

and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

18 M A2 B AR
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB AR

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lai Hung Wai
Practising Certificate Number: P06995

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & = —

&H@éﬁ%ﬁ%

E-NFT+ZR=+—HILFE

2018 2017
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —T—tF
B 5 FER FHET
Revenue A 5 263,011
Direct operating costs BEELERKAR (156,713)
Gross profit E7 106,298
Other income, gains and losses EUa A~ Wz R EE 7 (6,157)
Distribution and selling expenses DHERHEERX (1,274)
Administrative and other TBREME SRS
operating expenses (137,552)
Finance costs A& KA 8 (376)
Equity-settled share-based PARR AR 45 8 2 LARR R SR 2
payment expenses 27 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect M - HENREZBERER
of property, plant and equipment BB E 1R 15 -
Decrease in fair value of BEMEZ AT EERD
investment properties 16 (26,704)
Loss before tax BBl RIS 1B (65,765)
Income tax credit Frisfii e 9 66,188
Profit (loss) for the year FEHN (EE) 10 423
Other comprehensive (expense) income ZAEEHM2MmE (Fx%)
for the year W &
Item that may be reclassified subsequently —HiZ [t E ¥ H 1 E
to profit or loss: A ZHE -
Exchange differences arising on REBINEBRESE 2
translation of foreign operations E W =58 (33,367)
Total comprehensive expense for the year N4 € 2 [ 3 2% (32,944)

HEEEZERERA A
2018 69




EOERREME EREE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE —_T— N\F+_A=+—HIFE

2018
NOTES HK$°000
—E-N\F
B 5% FHERT
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: AEE (FHE)&mFH
TH AL REAE
Owners of the Company PiN/NETE Z N (3,785)
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR A 2 4,208
423
Total comprehensive expense RNEEZHEAZAREH T
for the year attributable to: AT :
Owners of the Company ViN/NETET Z N (31,891)
Non-controlling interests 1R A (1,053)
(32,944)
Loss per share FREE 14
— Basic (HK$) —HAKRGET) (0.00)
— Diluted (HK$) —#8 08T (0.00)

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited

2017
HK$'000
—T—+tF
FHT




At 31 December 2018 R—E— NE+=-A=+—H

2018 2017
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—tF
B 5% FHET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment MIE - HER RS 15 296,234
Investment properties KEME 16 130,000
Other asset Hib&EE 17 19,800
446,034
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 18 1,536
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E b EULER 3k 19 26,185
Investments held for trading FHIEEERE 20 7,068
Bank balances and cash RITHEBER S 21 1,859,781
1,894,570
Assets classified as held for sale DEAFIELEEE 22 50,438
1,945,008
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 I H AT AR X 23 93,336
Tax liabilities HIEAE 9,873
Contract liabilities EHEE 24 3,243
106,452
Liabilities associated with assets HAOBARELEERE
classified as held for sale HENEaE 22 36,618
143,070
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 1,801,938
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EELERRBERS
CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,247,972
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EXLRIARE 25 33,041
NET ASSETS EEEE 2,214,931
HEAEERERAE

2018
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At 31 December 2018 R=ZZE— \FE+-_A=+—H

2018 2017

NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—tF

i FTHT FHT

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXREE

Share capital fi& 2

Reserves G

Equity attributable to owners of RRARGEB ANELER
the Company

Non-controlling interests FE 1 M

TOTAL EQUITY ERBRE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 69 to 192 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28

March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

YAP ALLAN CHAN LING, EVA
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
72 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018

26 7,892
2,016,436

2,024,328
190,603

2,214,931
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anges in EqL

mERREZEER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE —T— \F+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARREEAER
Retained
Share earnings Non-
Share Share Special  Translation options Other  (accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserves losses) Total interests Total
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
REER
BE  REEE  %BIEE  EXRE  BRERR ARk (RitER) &t FERER Chl
Tin Thn Fin T Tin Thn Tin T Tin Fién
(Note i) (Note i)
(B3E) (P3kii)
At 1 January 2017 RZF-t5-f-A 7892 1,360,752 658,303 60,291 - (70,319) 97,086 2,114,005 192518 2,306,523
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - - (116128)  (116,128)  (9.120)  (125,248)
Other comprehensive REREMZEYE
income for the year - - - 44,627 - - - 44,627 8,258 52,885
Total comprehensive income AEE2ENE (73
(expense) for the year 4% - - - M6 - - (116,128)  (71,501) (862)  (72,363)
Recognition of equity-settled BB AEE 2 )
share-based payments R (Hskor)
(note 27) - - - - 13,715 - - 13,715 - 13,715
At31December 2017 KZF—+%
TZA=1-H 7892 1360752 658303 104918 13715 (70319)  (19,042) 2,056,219 191,65 2,247,875
(Loss) profit for the year A% (&i8) & = = = = = - (378 (3,789) 4,208 43
Other comprehensive FEREMZERR
expense for the year - - - (28,106) - - - (28,1006) (5261)  (33,367)
Total comprehensive AEERERYAE
expense for the year - - - (28,106) - - (3,785 (31,891) (1,053)  (32,944)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE
T-A=1-H 7892 1,360,752 658,303 76,812 13,715 (70,319) (22,827)  2,004328 190,603 2,214,931
AEHEERERA R
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEBRRELDE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & & —

Notes:

(i)

(i)

Special reserve represents (i) the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal
value of the shares of the Company issued for the acquisition under
the group reorganisation in September 1997; and (ii) reduction in
share capital during the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2008.

When the Group acquires additional interest in an entity that
is already controlled by the Group, it is accounted for as equity
transaction. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiary. Other reserves represent
the differences between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
that are recognised directly in equity.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nv'.RAIE:ﬁ/JILE%:Z

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE - — \F+_-_A=+—HBHILFE

2018 2017
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\HF —ET—+tF
Bt 5 FHERT FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReER
Profit (loss) for the year REE @A (&) 423 (125,248)
Adjustments for: HE
Income tax credit SR (66,188) (2,558)
Depreciation of property, plant and M MRRREZTE
equipment 36,698 37,660
Equity-settled share-based ARG E 2 AR R AT
payment expenses X - 13,715
Interest income A B U A (3,975) (8,574)
Finance costs RhE B A 376 1,066
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  MRREZHZ
plant and equipment &8 21 21
Impairment loss recognised in respect M HBERBRELE
of property, plant and equipment R EEE - 14,772
Loss on fair value changes HEEBEREZATEE
of investments held for trading ZEE 9,442 39,264
Decrease in fair value of WEMEZ R FEERD
investment properties 26,704 41,529
Operating cash flows before movements EEESEHAZ
in working capital KEBRSME 3,501 11,647
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERAD (3Em) 324 (115)
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 N E i & U BR FOR A 31,285 48,873
Decrease in investments held for trading ?—M’EE BERERD 5,312 =
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 I H fth & < BR 5RI% A0 3,567 4,137
Increase in contract liabilities ARG EEM 169 -
Cash generated from operations BERBS2H® 44,158 64,542
Taxes paid in the People’s Republic of China B 2 # A R £ F1EH
(the “PRC") (M E ) B8 (6,347) (5,980)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING RETHAB2REFH
ACTIVITIES 37,811 58,562
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Deposit paid for acquisition of a subsidiary FMUKEH B AT LS 29 (24,792) =
Refund of deposit paid for acquisition FUEMRB AR B
of a subsidiary BB 29 22,700 -
Deposit received for disposal of a subsidiary #t & M8 2 7 & WEUE & 22 23,906 -
Repayment of other receivable (Note) [ iE E 4th 8 W BR 3k (B9 ) - 75,000
Interest received 2 U F & 3,975 8,574
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant  H& ¥ % - #22 % RE
and equipment Fr 1S 3 E 37 46
Additions to property, plant and REWE  HEREKE
equipment (543) (4,283)
NET CASH FROM INVESTING REGFBHFEREFER
ACTIVITIES 25,283 79,337
HEEEERERAR

201853
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

SERETMER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & & —

—N\FF+-HA=1t—"BLFE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—B-N\F T+
Fi#T FHT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Advance from other borrowings =3 5,767 6,934
Repayment of other borrowings =3 (5.767) (6,934)
Interest paid (376) (1,066)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING BMEETBSFAZRESTE
ACTIVITIES (376) (1,066)
NET INCREASE IN CASH ReRASEEEB ZEMFE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 62,718 136,833
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS —B—HZzBHERBREEEER
AT 1 JANUARY 1,801,383 1,660,949
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE bE &= & FE
CHANGES (4,141) 3,601
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS +-A=+—HZzEERBELSEER
AT 31 DECEMBER,
represented by bank balances and cash BURTTAE R IR & 1,859,960 1,801,383

Note: The amount represents repayment of a loan granted by the
Company in 2014 in relation to a potential investment. The
repayment was previously presented as a decrease in other
receivables in Operating Activities and is reclassified to Investing
Activities in these consolidated financial statements.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZE =T —\FF+_A=1T—HILEFE

GENERAL

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate

information section to the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the businesses of hotel operation and

trading of securities.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency of the

Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) have applied the
following new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the

first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

HKFRS 15

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” with HKFRS 4
“Insurance Contracts”

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014 - 2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H £ — =&

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(CONTINUED)

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in

these consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the current
year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11

“Construction Contracts” and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying this Standard recognised
at the date of initial application, 1 January 2018. Any difference
at the date of initial application is recognised in the opening
accumulated losses and comparative information has not been
restated. Accordingly, certain comparative information may not
be comparable as comparative information was prepared under
HKAS 18, HKAS 11 and the related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources

which arise from contracts with customers:

. hotel rooms

e food and beverage

Information about the Group’s performance obligations and the
accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 15 are

disclosed in notes 5 and 3 respectively.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE - — \F+_-_A=+—HBHILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

2. ERAFIIREZEITIEBHIF
WREER ([FEBUBRELE
Al 1) ¢

RAEFEBRBER ZHTRE
CHEN DR

BB HHREEREI155 [ A

(CONTINUED) EF&E#Z WA ()

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15 B R FE &8 7 3 & BRI 1595 & 4
I EHE

The application of HKFRS 15 does not have significant impact FE A& 7 B 7 S 4 R 551 555 T R R UK

on the timing and amounts of revenue recognised nor the AZKEREERR_ZE—NF—HA—

accumulated losses at 1 January 2018.

The following adjustments were made to the amounts recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at 1 January
2018. Line items that were not affected by the changes have not

been included.

BZZBETEEREATE -

R-Z-N\F—-A-BNHFEaHHKNRR
RTHRNTHECHFEATHARE - TR
SBHYENABYEREER -

Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 15 at
31 December 1 January
2017 Reclassification 2018
R #&
2n ERMBREER
ZE—tF F155H R
+=H=+—-H —E-N\F
2RMEREE ENo¥E —B-—BWEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
(Note)
(P 3E)
CURRENT LIABILITIES BB E
Trade and other payables B 5 & E M ERER 108,189 (3,074) 105,115
Contract liabilities BREE - 3,074 3,074
Note: As at 1 January 2018, advances from customers of Mz : R=ZF—N\F—HA—H LAt

HK$3,074,000 previously included in trade and other payables
were reclassified to contract liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HLZ=ZT—\F+_A=+T—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(CONTINUED)

The following tables summarise the impacts of applying HKFRS 15
on the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018 and its consolidated statement of cash flows
for the current year for each of the line items affected. Line items

that were not affected by the changes have not been included.

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position

FE R ¥ RIS BB K
RELZR (BB EREE
A ]) @)

REAFEEBREER 2T ITRE
BB BMKEHREER (@)

TR BHEERE155 K H
FEFEEHZKA T (B)

TRELM T EAEBM B REEAE5
BUAEER T N\F+-A=+—
BMEAMBRAREAFERARS
MEBRZYENER - TXEHTEN

BERYEBEERN o

HESHBERRERNEE

Amounts
without
application of
As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15
b 4% &
ERMBREER
R & A AR FISHEzeHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHAT FHT
CURRENT LIABILITIES =R
Trade and other payables B 5 K HE A e R X 93,336 3,243 96,579
Contract liabilities BHBE 3,243 (3,243) =

Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows

HESHRSRERNTE

Amounts
without
application of
As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15
3 % FE
BERUMBREEL
MRS FTE AR HISHEzEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETH

Increase in trade and other payables & 5 K H b & -
BRRIE N 3,567 169 3,736
Increase in contract liabilities EHaEE N 169 (169) =

80 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE - — \F+_-_A=+—HBHILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 and the
related consequential amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS
9 introduces new requirements for 1) the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, 2)
expected credit losses (“ECL") for financial assets and 3) general

hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the transition
provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the classification
and measurement requirements (including impairment under
ECL model) retrospectively to instruments that have not been
derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date of initial application)
and has not applied the requirements to instruments that have
already been derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The difference
between carrying amounts as at 31 December 2017 and the
carrying amounts as at 1 January 2018 are recognised in the
opening accumulated losses and other components of equity,

without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared under

HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9 are

disclosed in note 3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HLZ=ZT—\F+_A=+T—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (CONTINUED)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9

0)

(i)

Classification and measurement

The application of HKFRS 9 has no impact on the
classification and measurement of the Group's financial
assets and financial liabilities at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2018. All financial assets and financial
liabilities continue to be measured on the same bases as

were previously measured under HKAS 39.

Impairment under ECL model
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to

measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for trade receivables.

ECL for other financial assets at amortised cost, including
other receivables and bank balances, are assessed on
12-month ECL (“12m ECL") basis as there had been no

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

As at 1 January 2018, no additional credit loss allowance

was recognised against accumulated losses.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZE =T —\FF+_A=1T—HILEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments

to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23
Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Leases'

Insurance Contracts*

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Definition of a Business®

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to Definition
of Material?

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement!

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015 = 2017 cycle’

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2019.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2020.

g Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2021.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.

Except for the new HKFRS mentioned below, the directors of

the Company anticipate that the application of all other new

and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

2.

FE R 5] R &B1E 5] BB B 7%
REER(BEBUBRELE
all) @
CHEGERRERZTTRE
BT E B BEHREER

75 £ [ 3 45 42 52 P P LA R B AR A B 4 R

R Z F#R] R BRI BB S E 2R

EAMBHRSER 163
BRMBAELERE 7R
BE(BARMBRERE
ZE8)—2ES
BRNBRSENF3RL
3T
BAMBREERFR
pALH|
BRMBRELERE 105
REE G ER 5285
Z{EF]
BRETENSIRR

BREHEAFSR 2]

BRGHENE195% 2 7T

HE
fRia &4
FEHEE PR

FBZESR

MERmECBNHE
B
RAZEEBERALA
ERAZAHEIIA
EE°

ERHIRE LB

TEEE  BRAER'

BR G ERNF 285 REERARAERRL

Z{EF] REER

BAMBREREANZET —B-LFE-ERLF
BREAVBREEY
ZEEHE

. RZZTE—h&F—A—HBsX2%RK
ZEEHMER-

2 R_ZTE_TF—F—Bsk2%R%
2 EFEHRAER -

3 BARKERASHA_ZT_ZTF—A8
—RAskzERENEEFEHRER
MEHRZRETHEBAHEE
BE U o

4 RZEZ—F-—A—H%zEAB
2 EFEHRMAER -

g REFETASKZERAENEE
gﬁﬁzﬁf@( °

B% T X ATt 37 7] &8 B 7% s £ RIS
ARBEEEAEAMA LM RE
CHESHREE R SR S S SR
EHEAUBBREREATE -

ABEEIERERA A
201853

83



84

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HLZ=ZT—\F+_A=+T—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS
17 "Leases” and the related interpretations when it becomes

effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis
of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. In
addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback transactions to
be determined based on the requirements of HKFRS 15 as to
whether the transfer of the relevant asset should be accounted as
a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes requirements relating to subleases

and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be
recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases

and leases of low value assets.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE - — \F+_-_A=+—HBHILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (CONTINUED)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands
for owned use and those classified as investment properties while
other operating lease payments are presented as operating cash
flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation
to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest
portion which will be presented as financing cash flows by the

Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid
lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee.
The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in
classification of these assets depending on whether the Group
presents right-of-use assets separately or within the same line
item at which the corresponding underlying assets would be

presented if they were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require a
lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a finance

lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HLZ=ZT—\F+_A=+T—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (CONTINUED)

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$80,054,000 as disclosed
in note 30. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental deposits
paid of HK$20,289,000 and refundable rental deposits received
of HK$4,319,000 as rights and obligations under leases to which
HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of lease payments under
HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to the right to
use the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of
such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments to
refundable rental deposits paid would be considered as additional
lease payments and included in the carrying amount of right-of-use
assets. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits received would be
considered as advance lease payments.

The application of the new requirements may result in changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above. The
Group intends to elect the practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16
to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS
17 and HK(FRIC)-Int 4 “Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease” and not apply this standard to contracts that were
not previously identified as containing a lease applying HKAS 17
and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4. Therefore, the Group will not reassess whether
the contracts are, or contain a lease which already existed prior
to the date of initial application. Furthermore, the Group intends
to elect the modified retrospective approach for the application
of HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of
initial application to opening accumulated losses without restating
comparative information.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZE =T —\FF+_A=1T—HILEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
investments held for trading that are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting

policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of

Assets”.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset

in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so that
at initial recognition the results of the valuation technique equals

the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Llevel 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can

access at the measurement date;
o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included

within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE - — \F+_-_A=+—HBHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:

o has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

e  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or

more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control

until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & & —

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (CONTINUED)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in

line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate

share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This
condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal
group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition
subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of
such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which should be
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within

one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of
that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group will
retain a non-controlling interest in the relevant subsidiary after

the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for
sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount

and fair value less costs to sell.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE - — \F+_-_A=+—HBHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance

obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct

goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following

criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group

performs;

e the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset that

the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to

date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (CONTINUED)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to consideration,
i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of that

consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the

customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same

contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance obligations
(such as packages that bundle food and beverage and other
services with hotel stays), the Group allocates the transaction
price to each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone

selling price basis.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE - — \F+_-_A=+—HBHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (CONTINUED)

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price) (CONTINUED)

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the Group
would sell a promised good or service separately to a customer.
If a stand-alone selling price is not directly observable, the
Group estimates it using appropriate techniques such that
the transaction price ultimately allocated to any performance
obligation reflects the amount of consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the

promised goods or services to the customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement

of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of the goods or services transferred to the customer to date
relative to the remaining goods or services promised under the
contract, that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring

control of goods or services.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HLZ=ZT—\F+_A=+T—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (CONTINUED)

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the
Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it would

not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions) as an asset
if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so recognised is
subsequently amortised to profit or loss on a systematic basis
that is consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods

or services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within one

year.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of

business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have

been met for each of the Group's activities, as described below.

Revenue from hotel accommodation and food and banquet

operations is recognised when services are provided.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE - — \F+_-_A=+—HBHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)
(CONTINUED)

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that

asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset. Other
than investment properties measured under fair value model,
such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis

over the lease term.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary

course of business are presented as revenue.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the

period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of

rental expense on a straight-line basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HLZ=ZT—\F+_A=+T—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (CONTINUED)
Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which
includes both leasehold land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element separately based
on the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been
transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire property is accounted as
an operating lease. Specifically, the entire consideration (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element

and building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as
an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in
the consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those that
are classified and accounted for as investment properties under
the fair value model. When the payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the leasehold land and building elements, the
entire property is generally classified as if the leasehold land is

under finance lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE - — \F+_-_A=+—HBHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost

in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised

in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong
Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve

(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they are incurred.
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3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONTINUED)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service

entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an

asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such

as wages and salaries) after deducting any amount already paid.

Share-based payment
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the

equity instruments at the grant date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE - — \F+_-_A=+—HBHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share-based payment (CONTINUED)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(CONTINUED)

Share options granted to employees (CONTINUED)

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number
of equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment of
all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share options
reserve. For share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted is expensed

immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred

to accumulated losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H £ — =&

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from loss before tax because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted

or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises

from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE - — \F+_-_A=+—HBHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interest are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and

they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover

or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather

than through sale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & & —

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (CONTINUED)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised

in profit or loss.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE - — \F+_-_A=+—HBHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or

for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. All of the Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
classified and accounted for as investment properties and are
measured using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in

profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the

period in which the property is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HLZ=ZT—\F+_A=+T—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine

the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible assets is estimated
individually, when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (“CGU"”) to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGUs,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be

identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a
CGU) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been

adjusted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE - — \F+_-_A=+—HBHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment on tangible assets (CONTINUED)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to
the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The
amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of
the unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit

or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and

costs necessary to make the sale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & & —

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established

by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15 since 1 January 2018. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"))
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE - — \F+_-_A=+—HBHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

3 the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive

income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash

flows and selling; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & & —
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (CONTINUED)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in
other comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business

Combinations” applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in

the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and

has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI
as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly

reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE - — \F+_-_A=+—HBHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in

note 2) (CONTINUED)

0)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below).
For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the

determination that the asset is no longer credit impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the “other

income, gains and losses” line item.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & & —

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets
which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade
and other receivables and bank balances). The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk

since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on
the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting

date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for debtors with
significant balances and/or collectively using a provision matrix

with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases in the

likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE - — \F+_-_A=+—HBHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 2) (CONTINUED)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
guantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue

cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

e  significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit

spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to

meet its debt obligations;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & & —

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONTINUED)

—N\FF+-HA=1t—"BLFE

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 2) (CONTINUED)
(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (CONTINUED)

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse change in the

regulatory, economic, or technological environment of

the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,

the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased

significantly since initial recognition when contractual

payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the

Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the

criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant

increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to

ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant

increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE - — \F+_-_A=+—HBHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 2) (CONTINUED)

(i)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals

held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default

criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes

observable data about the following events:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=—ZE— NF+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2) (CONTINUED)
(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets (CONTINUED)
. the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider; or

o it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(iv)  Write-off policy
The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.

Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZE =T —\FF+_A=1T—HILEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 2) (CONTINUED)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring as

the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined

at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=—ZE— NF+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 2) (CONTINUED)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (CONTINUED)
Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level may
not yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped

on the following basis:

e Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's trade
and other receivables and amounts due from customers

are each assessed as a separate group);

. Past-due status;

e Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share

similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated

based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss

allowance account.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE - — \F+_-_A=+—HBHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at FVTPL and loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established

by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

(i)  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial

asset is held for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as

a hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=—ZE— NF+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (CONTINUED)

(i)  Financial assets at FVTPL (CONTINUED)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets and is included in the “other income, gains
and losses” line item. Fair value is determined in the manner

described in note 33(c).

(i) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables and
bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the

recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE - — \F+_-_A=+—HBHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on
1 January 2018)

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been

affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;

or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & & —

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on
1 January 2018) (CONTINUED)

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period and observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

The amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s

original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit

or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised

cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE - — \F+_-_A=+—HBHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks

and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in

profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial

liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities including trade and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H £ — =&

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial liabilities and equity (CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is

recognised in profit or loss.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZE =T —\FF+_A=1T—HILEFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Impairment assessment of hotel properties
included in property, plant and equipment

Determining whether the hotel properties are impaired requires
an estimation of the value-in-use of these hotel properties. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the CGU with key assumptions
on gross profit margin, future revenue growth rates, terminal
growth rates and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which results in
downward revision of future cash flows, further impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of hotel
properties was HK$278,482,000 (net of accumulated depreciation
and impairment loss of HK$170,261,000) (2017: carrying amount
of HK$372,662,000 (net of accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss of HK$280,775,000)). Details of the recoverable

amount calculation are disclosed in note 15.

Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by an independent professional valuer. In
determining the fair value, the valuer has based on a method of
valuation which involves certain estimates of market conditions
and assumptions made on the investment properties, including
price per square meter of comparable market transactions, with
certain unobservable inputs such as adjustment of the location
and remaining operating period of the properties to reflect

different locations or conditions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & & —

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Valuation of investment properties (CONTINUED)

In relying on the valuation report, the directors of the Company
have exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the
assumptions used in the valuation are reflective of the current
market conditions and current development of the investment
properties. Changes to these assumptions would result in
changes in the fair values of the Group’s investment properties
and the corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss
reported in profit or loss. As at 31 December 2018, the carrying
amount of investment properties is HK$130,000,000 (2017:

HK$164,000,000).

Depreciation of hotel properties

Hotel properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives with consideration of the remaining term of
the leases and the remaining years of co-operative period. Their
useful lives reflect the directors’ estimate of the periods that the
Group intends to derive economic benefits from the use of the
Group's hotel properties. Changes in assumptions relating to
these factors could affect the rate at which the hotel properties

are depreciated and the carrying amount of the hotel properties.

Deferred tax asset

As at 31 December 2018, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised on the tax losses of HK$635,728,000 due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability of
the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differences will be available
in the future. In cases where the actual future taxable profits
generated are more than expected, or change in facts and
circumstances which result in revision of future taxable profits
estimation, recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such

recognition takes place.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZE =T —\FF+_A=1T—HILEFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on past due analysis
as groupings of various debtors that have similar loss patterns.
The provision matrix is based on the Group’s historical default
rates taking into consideration forward-looking information
that is reasonable and supportable available without undue
costs or effort. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered. In addition, trade receivables with
significant balances and credit impaired are assessed for ECL

individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group's trade receivables are

disclosed in note 19.

Impairment of other receivables

Upon application of HKFRS 9, ECL for other receivables are
assessed on 12m ECL basis as there had been no significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Assessment are
done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
general conditions, internal credit ratings and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions. The provision of ECL is sensitive to

changes in estimates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE —_T— N\F+_A=+—HIFE

5. REVENUE 5.

LN

Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-_Z-N\E+=-A=+—-HLEE
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers KEEFLEAZ YA B EE
Hotel Securities
operations trading
HK$'000 HK$'000
BIERE EHEE
Segments 28 FH&T FET
Types of service PR
Hotel rooms B E R R 180,482 -
Food and beverage B ER 33,656 -
214,138 -
Geographical markets i 33 T 45
Hong Kong e 106,746 -
The PRC ] 107,392 -
214,138 -
Timing of revenue recognition W A T 52 B
At a point in time T — B e B 33,656 -
Over time P& By 180,482 -
214,138 —
1 26 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZE =T —\FF+_A=1T—HILEFE

REVENUE (CONTINUED)

Year ended 31 December 2018 (CONTINUED)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

(CONTINUED)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from contracts
with customers with the amounts disclosed in the segment

information.

5. WA @

BE-_Z—-N\F+-A=+—HLEE
(%)

KEEFEHZIMA LK (E)

TXHINKREEPAN WAL EE
B E Rk -

Segment

revenue

and

consolidated

HK$'000

2PEBRAR

FEANR

FAT

Hotel operations B E 48 214,138
Securities trading BHEE -
Revenue from contracts with customers RHEZEF&SHZWA 214,138
Rental income e WA 48,873
Total revenue AN 263,011

Performance obligations for contracts with customers
The Group’s revenue contracts with customers consist of hotel

rooms and food and beverage.

The transaction price of hotel rooms and food and beverage is
the net amount collected from the customer for such goods and
services. The transaction price for such transactions is recorded as
revenue when the good or service is transferred or rendered to
the customer during their stay at the hotel or when the delivery

is made for food and beverage.

HBEFENZENEL
AEBZEFEHBABREBERERER

o

i
@

BEEFERERZRSHBERAREEE
MRS B R PWEZ RIBFRE - RE
FARBEERAREFPERIRERER
IRBERERINERE - FEARHZ
R HERARIMEHA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HLZ=ZT—\F+_A=+T—HILFE

5. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

Year ended 31 December 2018 (CONTINUED)

Performance obligations for contracts with customers

(CONTINUED)

The Group has other contracts that include multiple goods and
services, such as packages that bundle food and beverage and
other services with hotel stays. For such arrangements, the Group
allocates revenue to each good or service based upon its relative
standalone selling price. The Group primarily determines the
standalone selling price of hotel rooms and food and beverage
based upon the amount that the Group charges when each is

sold separately in similar circumstances to similar customers.

5.

A ()
BE-_Z—\E+-_A=+—HLEE
(#8)

HEFENZEREE (E)

AEBzEMANBRERZEEMMR
T o AR N B A RS BB SR (TR 4
BZME HEFEREEME - NEEIN
BV EBEESBASREEEM
R - REBTEERERUBRT
HABURFPEBRMEERRE REK
BRRzecBRETEACEBER-

Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z—tH+-A=+—HLEE
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as follows: REBFRABRASITAT :

2017
HK$'000
e
FHET
Hotel operations income B 5 £ A 204,604
Rental income el A 47,707
252,311

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE - — \F+_-_A=+—HBHILFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of services provided and activities

carried out by the Group's operating divisions.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS 8

“Operating Segments” are as follows:

1. Hotel operations - hotel accommodation, food and banquet
operations and rental income from rentals of shop units
situated in the hotels of the Group and from rentals of

investment properties; and

2. Securities trading - trading of equity securities.

No operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at the

reportable segments of the Group.

6.

7 REF

MARTRTES  DEBEEREE
(EELBREE)) ZRARHRER
RFEARRRZ AN N ETRAEE
S DR RRE R
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AIFEeR [EEn BB D 2 Al E DM

1. BEEZE-BEERE ERELES
15 U RRBEMLRAEEEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=—ZE— NF+_-_A=+—HILFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. DHEER @

Segment revenue and results PTERARESE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by NTRAEEWRAREERRE KK
reportable and operating segments. BN D e

130

Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-_Z—N\E+-A=+—HLEE
Hotel Securities
operations trading Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
SE JE EHEE mE
FET FHET FET
REVENUE A 263,011 - 263,011
RESULTS E
Segment loss excluding loss on DEERE (TBERFE
fair value changes of BEERECATEE
investments held for trading sE)EE) (12,205) (403) (12,608)
Loss on fair value changes of BIEEBRAEAZAT
investments held for trading BEZFHEE - (9,442) (9.442)
Segment loss DIEEE (12,205) (9,845) (22,050)
Directors’ emoluments EE=Me (3,226)
Interest income LB A 3,975
Decrease in fair value of wEMEZ
investment properties NEEERD (26,704)
Finance costs Bl & Bl AN (376)
Central administrative costs and R ITBUK AN &
unallocated corporate expenses AOMEFERZ (17,384)
Loss before tax BrFi R ES 1R (65,765)

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE —T— \F+_A=+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)

Segment revenue and results (CONTINUED)

Year ended 31 December 2017

REVENUE A

RESULTS ES

Segment (loss) profit excluding H¥E (B8R &
impairment loss recognised in (TREmE - R
respect of property, plant and BB EERBERBER
equipment and loss on fair value BIEEBREZAFEE
changes of investments held for 2HER)
trading

Impairment loss recognised in M MERREZ
respect of property, plant and BRI EEE
equipment

Loss on fair value changes of HIEBEBEREZATER
investments held for trading B EiE

Segment loss HEER

Directors’ emoluments =

Interest income AMEWA

Decrease in fair value of KEMEZ A TFEERD
investment properties

Finance costs Bl & A AR

Central administrative costs HRRATIK AR RR 5 R
and unallocated PERT

corporate expenses

Loss before tax B AR B 1R

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.

Segment loss represents the loss from each segment without
allocation of directors’ emoluments, interest income, decrease
in fair value of investment properties, finance costs and central
administrative costs and unallocated corporate expenses. This is
the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

6. DEEN®

DPEBRAREE®
BE-Z-—tE+-A=1+—HLFE
Hotel Securities
operations trading Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B E S BHEE RE
TR FET FET

188 5 M 7 B H TR B B3R i A R
EE s RR AR -

PHEBRESSRELEZER B9
APREEME  FEKA REWE
ZRFEERD BB RFRTT
BARARARDBEEERAS W HAEE
BEAREEZBRHESIEERLAGEE
BZFTE7% -

HEEEERER AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & & —

—N\FF+-HA=1t—"BLFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. ?EER @
Segment assets and liabilities THEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities NTRAEERAIGRERLCEDHZE
by reportable and operating segments: ERBEII:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
—g-n=& Tt
FET FET
SEGMENT ASSETS PEEE
Hotel operations B JE 4 306,018 455,477
Securities trading BHEERE 7,216 22,383
Total segment assets DEEERE 313,234 477,860
Investment properties TEMHE 130,000 164,000
Bank balances and cash RITHEABR KRR S 1,859,781 1,801,383
Assets classified as held for sale DEARBELHEZEE 50,438 =
Other unallocated assets HEfbRkH B EE 37,589 30,849
Consolidated assets HEBAE 2,391,042 2,474,092
SEGMENT LIABILITIES PEAE
Hotel operations S 93,987 99,361
Securities trading BHER 2,592 8,828
Total segment liabilities DHEAERTE 96,579 108,189
Tax liabilities MIBEE 9,873 76,874
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIEEE 33,041 41,154
Liabilities classified as held for sale DEABELEZAE 36,618 =
Consolidated liabilities FEAE 176,111 226,217
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and RERDBRRBREZHDBEERSE

allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
investment properties, bank balances and cash, assets

classified as held for sale and other unallocated assets; and

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than
current and deferred tax liabilities and liabilities classified as

held for sale.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE —T— \F+_A=+—HILFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. DHEER W
Other segment information Hibp EEH
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-Z-—-N\FE+=-A=+—HLEE
Hotel Securities Consolidated
operations trading Unallocated total
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BIERE HHEEE RO mEAT
FER FER FET FET
Amounts included in the ATENEER
measure of segment loss D EEERGA
or segment assets: ZRIA
Addition to property, Y - 1 Es AR E IS N
plant and equipment 543 - - 543
Depreciation of property, M - e RRIE
plant and equipment ZHTE 36,422 - 276 36,698
Loss on disposal of property,  HE&EWE - # 28 &R
plant and equipment pd it 21 - - 21
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZE—tHF+-A=+—HLEE
Hotel Securities Consolidated
operations trading Unallocated total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BHREE RABL FREEF
FH T FHET FET FHE T
Amounts included in the FES RS EE
measure of segment profit D HEERFTA
or loss or segment assets: ZRIE
Addition to property, Y2 - RS IRk AN
plant and equipment
Depreciation of property, L7 E g
plant and equipment 2T E
Loss on disposal of property, HE¥E  #EL K
plant and equipment 2 W

HEEEERER AR 133
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For the year ended 31 December 20

6. OPERATING SEGME

18HE_ZTE—\F+-_A=+—HIFE

NTS (CONTINUED) 6.

Geographical information

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers

is presented based on the

location of operations. Information

about the Group’s non-current assets is presented based on the

geographical location of asse

ts.

DEER )
b 35 & 6}
A EMMEEE LD BT o

BRAKERBIBES ZWANER
TIEREWIH2T - BREAKEERD
BECZERNDREEMEMEMERS)

Revenue from
external customers

Year ended 31 December

Non-current assets

RESNBESZRA
BE+-A=+-ALEE ERBEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—®-NE ~T—+tF —¥-NF —T—+%F
FHR FHx FARE Fx
Hong Kong B 106,746 96,343 29,743 31,582
The PRC th 156,265 155,968 416,291 553,329
263,011 252,311 446,034 584,911
Information about major customers EBEXrEREFZER

No single customer contribu

the Group during both years.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE —T— \F+_A=+—HILFE

7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HEWRA - K R EE
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
—2-N% —E—tF
FHERT FHET
Loss on fair value changes of BIEEBREAZATFEEEZTEE
investments held for trading (9,442)
Net exchange loss b 5 &5 18 58 (2,187)
Interest income on bank deposits and  #R17 17 5k & F b & W AR 58 2 A E A
other receivables 3,975
Sundry income HIBA 1,518
Loss on disposal of property, HEWR HREREZEER
plant and equipment (21)
(6,157)
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. WEMA
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—2-N% —E—tF
FHERT FHET
Interest on other borrowings HMEEZFE 376

HEEEERER AR 3
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=—ZE— NF+_-_A=+—HILFE
9. INCOME TAX CREDIT 9. FRIEHER
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\E —T—tF
FHERT FHET
Current tax: RVEAFH I -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R EMET 5,694 6,164
Under(over)provision in prior years: MEFERENE GRERERE)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R ST R 171 87
Capital gain tax (Note) B AWz T (T EE) (66,744) =
Deferred tax (note 25): RIERIIE (fH5E25)
Current year KFEE (5,309) (8,809)
(66,188) (2,558)

Note: This relates to reversal of a provision for capital gain tax
payable in relation to a deemed disposal of a subsidiary in the
PRC that was completed in November 2013.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill")
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on
the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime,
the first HK$2,000,000 of profits of the qualifying group entity
will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2,000,000 will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed

at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZE =T —\FF+_A=1T—HILEFE

INCOME TAX CREDIT (CONTINUED)

The directors of the Company considered the amount involved
upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable

profit for both years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group has no assessable profits arise in Hong Kong for both

years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

The tax charge (credit) for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income as follows:

9.

EHIKR @

RABEERE  BiamAFEHHE
Fip ke BEHREMBERRLESK
FE - WMEFENEBHERIIZMET
FERFBHEFH16.5%1F o

HRAEERMEFELBERBEESE
FERTLSE AN - H Itk I EAE R B EFSH
Bifh o

REBETBECEMGSEE(EEMAEHR
ED REEMGBOERE GRS - o B
BARRMEFEZHER25% °

AEFEZHABHEAR (FX) JREAR
o N Bt 2 T U 2R 3R 2 R T AT U8 48 1 R
W

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
Y Wiy S T =
FHET FH&T
Loss before tax W 253 BT B5 18 (65,765) (127,806)
Tax at the domestic income tax WA FTS T R25% T B 2§78
rate of 25% (Note) (M3E) (16,441) (31,951)
Tax effect of expenses that are not TR TE FE FR At e 1 B 1S AT H0RL 2
deductible in determining taxable profit AY 2 BB e 1,453 6,533
Tax effect of income that is not taxable FARE T FE R T i B R B RR TR 2
in determining taxable profit WA 272 (3.171) (2,307)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AER I HEEB 2RETE 10,409 8,400
Utilisation of tax losses previously not AL ARER 2 HIAEE
recognised (973) (4,922)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERZAMBAERER 2
differences not recognised Hige & 9,108 21,602
Reversal of capital gain tax on gain on RALE—HHE A A A
deemed disposal of a subsidiary 25 48 A B AN W s A 4 [ (66,744) -
Underprovision in prior years BEFERETR 171 87
Income tax credit for the year REEZEHESL (66,188) (2,558)
Note: The domestic tax rate (which is the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Misr: FrERAMMR R AREBEL Y

rate) in the jurisdiction where the operation of the Group is

substantially based is used.

X EREMHEAARE 2 BB
CEFEGHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE ==&

10. PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

—NFE+-_A=+—BLFE

10. £ EmA (i)

2018
HK$'000
—E-N\F
FHET

Profit (loss) for the year has been F XA (BB)E Bk (GFA)

arrived at after charging (crediting): T3&IEA :
Directors’ emoluments (note 11) 2= (1) 3,226
Other staff: H M8 TR :

Salaries and allowances e RER 78,236

Contributions to retirement RIRTE A ET B

benefits scheme 6,339
Equity-settled share-based AR 4 8 2 AR R
payment expenses -

Total employee benefits expense EERFHAZ A 87,801
Auditor's remuneration Z SR B & 2,971
Cost of inventories recognised BERRAAILHZTFEXA

as expenses 24,238
Depreciation of property, plant Mz MBERZEBITE

and equipment 36,698
Electricity, water and utilities B8 KERLCAEKER 15,478
Gross rental income from investment BREMHEBHSBAR D 2T H

properties less negligible outgoings (FFAA)

(included in revenue) (24,808)

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited

nnual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZE =T —\FF+_A=1T—HILEFE

11. DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year,

disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

N.ESRITHARNE

RFER ETRRREFERBIGIIKE
WERNEERITHRAEBMSMT -

2018 —E_N\F
Mr. Chan
Dr. Yap Ms. Chan Pak Cheung,
Allan Ling, Eva* Natalis Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EXEEL GRS 2 BREREE et
FExT FiExT FHBxT FTEx
(A) Executive directors: (A) MITESE:
Fees Fiaker 120 - - 120
Salaries and other o kEMmER
benefits - 2,848 - 2,848
Contributions to R KRR T FT 8 4 51
retirement
benefits scheme - 18 - 18
Sub-total /INEF 120 2,866 - 2,986

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their

services in connection with the management of the affairs of the

Company and the Group.

EIHTEEME AR BKEREER
RAERAREEZ BBEHMIRH 2R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE ==&

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

—NFE+-_A=+—BLFE

MNEBESRITHREAZME @)

2018 (CONTINUED) —E—-NFE (&)
Mr. Kwok Mr. Poon
Ka Lap, Kwok Hing, Mr. Sin
Alva Albert Chi Fai Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRE L KE BEFELE HEBEE Mat
FExT FET FERT FET
(B) Independent (B) B IEHITES :
non-executive
directors:
Fees we 80 100 60 240
Contributions to RARAEFIFT B X
retirement
benefits scheme - - - -
Sub-total INEF 80 100 60 240

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown

above were for their services as directors of the Company.

Total

1 40 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE —T— \F+_A=+—HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S NESRITHREZME @
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
2017 —E—tHF
Mr. Chan
Dr. Yap Ms. Chan Pak Cheung,
Allan Ling, Eva* Natalis Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EREE L PRES 22 £ =g it
FHT FHT FHET FH&T
(A) Executive directors: (A) BITES :
Fees we

Salaries and other benefits e kHEMER
Equity-settled share-based ARG E 2 AR

payment expenses KAAZ
Contributions to RONAE B ET S LR
retirement benefits
scheme
Sub-total NE
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their FHEITEEMES VAR HEREERN
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the NEIRARER 7 ELRFTIZHE 2 RE o

Company and the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE —_T— N\F+_A=+—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S MNEBESRITHREAZME @)

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

2017 (CONTINUED)

Mr. Kwok
Ka Lap,
Alva
HK$'000
BEI KL
FHT
(B) Independent (B) BIEHITES -
non-executive
directors:
Fees we
Equity-settled ARG E 2 AR
share-based payment R X
expenses
Contributions to R ARAR F AT S R
retirement benefits
scheme
Sub-total NEE

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown

above were for their services as directors of the Company.

*  Ms. Chan Ling, Eva is also the chief executive of the
Company and her emoluments disclosed above include

those for services rendered by her as the chief executive.
There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief

executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

both years.

1 42 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited

Annual Reiort 2018 _

—B—+tF ()
Mr. Poon
Kwok Hing, Mr. Sin
Albert Chi Fai Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
S B S A HEBEE BET
FHET FHET FHET

B ERTESHME DRSS
EARRBEEMEMHZIRTE ©

* BRRZEITNA/ARATRMAE M
EREXMBEZHeBEEE
RITHREBRHRB M2

RAEFEREEEHITRAERBESL
RERRERNME 2R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZE =T —\FF+_A=1T—HILEFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, certain directors were
granted share options, in respect of their services to the Group
under the share option scheme of the Company. Details of the
share option scheme are set out in note 27 to the consolidated

financial statements.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office as a director in connection with
the management of the affairs of any member of the Group

during both years.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included one director (2017: two directors), details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 11 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining four (2017: three)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief

executive of the Company are as follows:

11.

12.

EERTHAIME @

i

 E T —+tHF+-_A=t+—HIEHF

CETEERERBEARD BBEREST
I 2N S B R A A AR TS JE I PR AR A < B
MR B FBEHN G E MBS HREW T
27 =

X

=

RREFE AEELEREESEE
EARERRAEBmAEFNESENE
IS ERIMARIMARER 218 2 &
B F BB Z fHE -

ERVAS STl PN
FAREERAUGETMALTRE—2
EE(ZZ—tF MBES) EMe
HIBEHN EXHEIN - FspmE (ZF
—tF=R)MFEEFNHIEARRIT
BREzcEaTNEE 2 FANEHEMNFE
N

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

—B-N% —EF—tF

FET FET

Salaries and other benefits e kEMER 3,552 2,795
Equity-settled share-based IARR AN 46 H 2 LARR B 2

payment expenses - 103

Contributions to retirement RRAE B FT B4 50
benefits scheme 72 54
3,624 2,952

ABEEIERERA A
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HLZ=ZT—\F+_A=+T—HILFE

12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (CoNTINUED)

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the

12.

ENESEHEMA L@
BeBUTEE WAL EEY &

directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the S ES ASAT
following band is as follows:

2018 2017
Number of Number of
employees employees
—E-N\F —T—tF
BEAH BEAE
Nil — HK$1,000,000 Z T 21,000,000 7T 2 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7c % 1,500,000/ 7T 2 2
4 3

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to these individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of any office in connection with the management of the

affairs of any member of the Group.

13. DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of
the Company during 2018, nor has any dividend been proposed
since the end of the reporting period (2017: Nil).

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018

13.

BE_Z-—N\FE_Z—tF+_A
=T—RLEFE AEETEREER
SEEFMKEAREBMAZFALX
RHERIE S ERIMAKINARE B 2 &
Z BB SRR 1 -

RS
REZ—N\F - fEAADE L BRR
SR A SR AR R B - T A S
BRARDEEFRAEARE (ZF
—£F )
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE=—Z— NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

14.LOSS PER SHARE 14.8REE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable KRABEE AEEFREAR N EEE
to owners of the Company is based on the following data: TDIETHBURETE -
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F e
FHERT FHET

Loss for the year attributable to owners ~ FA{EFI ESFRERREFEIE 2

of the Company for the purpose of RAEEB AEEFEARNERE
basic and diluted loss per share (3,785)
Number of shares & B
2018 2017
2% =t

Weight average number of ordinary RETEERERNREEBEIE 2

shares for the purpose of basic and LR NETHEE

diluted loss per share 789,211,046
The computation of diluted loss per share for both years does not FTEMEFE 2 GREEEERTER
assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options BITEARB ZRITEERE  REAR
since their assumed exercise would result in a decrease in loss per BRBRATEBERESSEHERERRD
share.

HEEEZERERA A

1

4

5

2018ii
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HLZ=ZT—\F+_A=+T—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. 915 - B RRE

Office
equipment
Hotel Furniture Leasehold Motor and
properties  and fixtures improvements vehicles  machinery Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
(Notes)
Bl g BAERE
V3 ES R#E nEzE A& R#E &t
AL T T THT T T
(B3t)
cosT B
At 1 January 2017 RZE-t5-A-H 598,447 14766 116,794 1,426 21831 759,264
Additions AE - 2,129 1,764 292 98 4,283
Disposals HeE - (300) (5.378) - (939) (6,617)
Exchange adjustments EHRE 54,990 1,155 7,230 128 2,051 65,554
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—tETZA=+-H 653437 17750 120,410 1846 29041 822,484
Additions RE - 520 - - 3 543
Reclassified as held for sale ENARARELE (166619 (0260 (2479 (252) (23928  (195,300)
Disposals e - (219) - - (110) (329)
Exchange adjustments B BE (38,075) (8200 (4,849 (1) (143)  (4523)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E+ZA=1-H 448,743 15205 113,086 1,523 3603 582,160
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT FERHE
At 1 January 2017 RZF-t5-A-8 220,097 10,181 88,899 474 U143 343,79
Provided for the year TERER 31,514 1,590 4,126 3 198 37,660
Impairment loss recognised in profitorloss ~ RERTEZZHESE 6,322 - 8,450 - -1
Eliminated on disposals HERHR = 21 (5,3660) - 907 (6,550
Exchange adjustments R AE 22,842 868 6,122 9 1,773 31,697
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tE+A=1-H 280,775 12362 102,31 798 25207 421373
Provided for the year RERAR 31,306 1,636 3293 26 01 3669
Reclassified as held for sale ENARARELE (124258)  (1,820) (408) (221)  (1.459)  (148,172)
Eliminated on disposals HEEHR - (204) = = (67) (21
Exchange adjustments i3k (17,562) (635) (4,213) (52) (1,400 (23,702)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\FTZA=1-H 170,261 11,339 100,903 781 2,642 285,926
CARRYING VALUES FEE
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NE+-B=1-H 278,482 3,866 12,183 LY 961 296,234
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tE+ZA=1-H 372,662 5,388 18,179 1,048 383 401111

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZE =T —\FF+_A=1T—HILEFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are

depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per

annum:

Hotel properties (comprising
land and buildings)

Furniture and fixtures
Leasehold improvements

Motor vehicles
Office equipment and
machinery

Over the shorter of the term of
lease of land use rights, or the
remaining co-operative period

10% - 20%

Over the shorter of the term of
the lease, or 5 — 10 years

8.33% — 20%

20%

Notes:

(a)

Included in the hotel properties in the PRC is a hotel property
with carrying value of HK$127,405,000, net of accumulated
impairment loss of HK$6,322,000 (2017: carrying value of
HK$152,305,000, net of accumulated impairment loss of
HK$6,322,000) situated in Guangzhou, in which the Group
holds land use rights and property right of the hotel property
for a term expiring in January 2037, under the name of
Rosedale Guangzhou.

Pursuant to a co-operative agreement entered into between
Allied Glory Investment Limited (“Allied Glory”), an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and the minority
shareholder (the “PRC Partner”) of Rosedale Guangzhou,
the co-operative period for Rosedale Guangzhou is 50 years
commencing from 15 January 1987.

Rosedale Guangzhou is a Sino-foreign co-operative joint venture
incorporated in the PRC and its major asset is a hotel property
located in Guangzhou (“Rosedale Guangzhou Hotel”), which
it owns and operates. The rights and ownership of Rosedale
Guangzhou Hotel would be transferred to the PRC Partner
upon the completion of the co-operative period. Pursuant
to the approval issued by the Foreign Economic and Trade
Commission (the “FETC"”), Rosedale Guangzhou was granted
an initial co-operative period of 30 years and such approval also
stated that, subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions,
the co-operative period could be extended for a further period
of time but not more than 20 years. Rosedale Guangzhou
was then granted a business licence with a period of 30 years
which expired on 15 January 2017. Upon expiry of the business
licence, the PRC Partner refused to cooperate with Allied Glory
to jointly apply for the extension of the business licence to 15
January 2037.

15. Y1 3% - ISR’ @)

MEME  #ERREEDDEERE
A 54 A -

B 5 W) % BRI RAEsHE
(Bt FHIS A (EHAR
RETF) BREH (AREE

RAE)

EMREE 10% - 20%

HEWEEE HMEFHNKSEI10F

(AR EEH B%E)
E 8.33% - 20%
PN E R 20%
R i 2%
Bt 5 -

(a)

RPBEZBENEBE —BEMLRE
N 75 BR (& A127,405,0005% 7T ($0
B R 518 (B £5486,322,00058 7T) (=
T — £ 4F : BRMEE/A152,305,0007%
o0 (0 Bk R &R (B & 186,322,000
T ZBEME - ZBENEZL
WERAECEEEEAAEEHINE
MIRBZZEREMEHER-Z
=t+tF—AER-

REAKKREFRAR (] H
RARNFZBEIFZEMBAR) H
BENABZ L &R (TR ERBH])
RUzafEREamE  BMBAE
WeEERR—ANEF—A+HA
REE+F -

JE N 3078 /% 7 P B R 1 AK 32 /9 R S
BERECE - HXREER A
LR EM 2B E Y% ([EMAEE
JE 1) 0 JN 20 BB B Ik e & M B BB M
BEREE -BMIBBHBE 2B K
BERBENRAERTKRERERESD
BEMN REHICEESHLZES
(THNEERSZEG]) BHH it
g BMNHBN L AERR=T
FoMZAETTR  EFEETH
HzBRAT AEHIE-—FER
PEZR_TFEH - BMNBBERMR
BEM=tFHLEHRER_F
—tE-—HAtEBEm REXEH
REM®EZ THRBHEREARS
EHARFHEERARERE—F
=t¥—AtAR-
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HLZ=ZT—\F+_A=+T—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 9% - #BERFRB @

(CONTINUED)

Notes: (CONTINUED)

(a)

(CONTINUED)

Allied Glory applied for an arbitral award (the “Arbitral Award”)
to reinstate the co-operative period to 50 years and require
the PRC Partner to cooperate in the application process of the
relevant licence of Rosedale Guangzhou for an extension to 15
January 2037.

On 3 May 2017, Allied Glory received an Arbitral Award issued
by the China International Economic and Trade Arbitration
Commission (the “CIETAC") pursuant to which the co-operative
period for Rosedale Guangzhou under the co-operative
agreement made shall be extended until 15 January 2027
and the PRC Partner shall provide all necessary assistance to
Rosedale Guangzhou in the application process for extending its
business licence.

The Arbitral Award, being a final award, took effect on the date
of issue and is legally binding on all parties to the arbitration.
The PRC Partner had, however, refused and/or failed to
cooperate with Allied Glory to apply for such extension. Allied
Glory then submitted an application to Guangzhou Intermediate
People’s Court (the “Intermediate Court”) for enforcement
of the Arbitral Award and the application was accepted by
the Intermediate Court in July 2017. The Intermediate Court
directed such application to Guangzhou Haizhu Court which
subsequently issued an execution order (the “Execution Order”)
to Bureau of Guangzhou Haizhu Industry and Information
Technology (EMT/ETKERH TEEEMES2/EB) and Bureau
of Guangzhou Haizhu Market and Quality Supervision (/T
BHEMSME2EEEER) on 14 September 2017 enabling
Allied Glory to apply for the relevant business licence. On 30
November 2017, the Execution Order was suspended due to the
fact that, based on the reply from the Bureau of Guangzhou
Haizhu Market and Quality Supervision, the unilateral
application for the extension of the business licence could not
be proceeded as it is subject to further re-submission with
relevant extension documents.

Management of the Group is currently taking appropriate steps
to enforce the Arbitral Award in accordance with all applicable
laws and regulations. As of the date of this report, the renewal
of the business licence is still being held up by the PRC Partner
and cannot be further proceeded. Management is in the process
of evaluating certain legal options so as to obtain the extension
of the business licence. However, should the Group be unable
to successfully extend the business licence period, the hotel
operations of Rosedale Guangzhou may be affected and further
impairment of the hotel property and related assets may be
required.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2018

B eE : (&)

(a)

€-)

BERBHHAE ([BRE]) UK E
EBREER TS U ERPEABH
BEFBEMNAENHBENRTEHRE
—ER=tF-AthABRZREBRE
FEE-

R-_ZE—tFRA=H ' 42E8K3T
FRBBRECEZESHEEZE S ([
HEZEG)BHENERE Bt &
EEEAREBETHEMNPEAE
HEARRE T _+F—HF+HAB -
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WAZERRE e
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZE =T —\FF+_A=1T—HILEFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Notes: (CONTINUED)

(b) Included in the hotel properties in the PRC is a hotel
property with a carrying value of HK$151,077,000 (2017:
HK$168,319,000) situated in Shenyang, in which the Group
holds land use rights and property right of the hotel property
for a term expiring on 28 April 2046.

(¢) Asat 31 December 2017, included in the hotel properties in the
PRC is a hotel property with a carrying value of HK$52,038,000,
net of accumulated impairment loss of HK$17,496,000, situated
in Luoyang, in which the Group holds the property right. The
land use rights of the hotel property are currently held by
Luoyang Power Supply Bureau (now known as Luoyang Power
Supply Company of Henan Province Electric Power Company
of State Grid), a non-controlling shareholder of the subsidiary
holding the hotel property. Pursuant to a land use rights
agreement entered into between Luoyang Power Supply Bureau
and the subsidiary of the Group on 15 April 1999 (before the
Group acquired the said subsidiary in 2004), Luoyang Power
Supply Bureau agreed to permit the said subsidiary to use the
land upon a term commencing from April 1999 to April 2049
for hotel use. As at 31 December 2018, the carrying value of
the hotel properties of HK$43,861,000 was transferred to held
for sale, details of which are set out in note 22.

Impairment assessment of hotel properties

The Group incurred operating losses in its hotel operations
segment in the PRC, and there were certain adverse changes
in the market and economic environment in the PRC in which
the hotel operations of the Group are located. Accordingly,
management has reviewed the recoverability of the relevant
carrying amounts of the CGUs in the hotel operations segment in
the PRC and the recoverability of the relevant carrying amounts
of the individual assets of property, plant and equipment if their
fair values less costs of disposal are available, as appropriate.
Each CGU represents each of the hotel operations that generate

independent cash flows.

15. Y1 3% - ISR’ @)

B eE : (&)

(b) RABEZBEDEBE —BARE
5 mEREE A151,077,000/8 7T (=
T — 4 : 168,319,000 7T) 2 /&
EWME ZBIEWMEZ LHERE
rEEE#ABAEBRFEmMFE BB
R-ZENEMA=—+/\BEmMm °

© MNZZE—+F+-_A=+—H0 R
FREZBEEYERE - BEARERE
™ BR [ {8 /452,038,000 7T (F1 K 2
=R B E71817,496,0005 7T) A &
EREMERES2BAEYE -ZB
EMEZ I ERREEREZTRZ
BEEMEZHB AR ZIEEBEER
EEMEXER (RBERATEESE
NRREBHERR)EE - BREE
BMEXRERAEBEZH B A AR
—MWANENA+HRR (RAEEE
—TENFWBEZNB AR A ET
Yt ERERE  RETEE
BREI & KB RARERZ LT
o FHA-NAAANFEARE =
TOAFMALE - AEBERRZ - R
—_E—-N\FE+-_A=+—H8  BJE
Y3 7 BRI B 543,861,000/ JT 8 #
EREHEE  HFBEHRME22 -

B IE YRR B R G
AEERTEBAERESHEELERE
BiE YERAEEBEXEBMESTR
MEREERRTHRE T TIAEE -
b EREEEHTEEELES R
MEReEEEMREE TR EE
B UARENNE BMERREEEZ
HEAREE (HEQFEERD SRR
AEM) (WER) 2 T KERE - Z]R
CEABNREELABYREMNELZSE
JEET o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & & —
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Impairment assessment of hotel properties
(CONTINUED)

The recoverable amounts have been determined based on higher
of fair value less cost of disposal or value-in-use calculations.
The recoverable amount of the CGU of each hotel operation
in the PRC was based on its value in use and was determined
with assistance of Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent
professional qualified valuer not connected to the Group. The
value in use calculation is a discounted cash flow model using
cash flow projections based on five-year financial budgets, with
reference to past performance and expectations for market
development, approved by management and using a discount
rate of 10.76% (2017: 10.41%). Cash flows after the 5-year
period were extrapolated using a 2% (2017: 3%) growth rate in

considering the economic condition of the market.

As at 31 December 2018, from the above assessment on each of
the hotel operations located in the PRC, there is no impairment
for the year then ended in respect of the hotel properties or the
CGUs to which these hotel properties relate. Further, the Group
did not identify objective evidence of reversal of impairment
loss for the year ended 31 December 2018. For the year ended
31 December 2017, an impairment loss of HK$14,772,000 was
recognised in relation to the hotel property located in Guangzhou
(HK$6,322,000 allocated to the hotel property based on its fair
value less cost of disposal and the remaining HK$8,450,000
to leasehold improvements), as its recoverable amount of
HK$152,305,000 was estimated to be lower than its carrying
amount. No impairment was identified for the year ended 31
December 2017 in respect of the hotel properties in Shenyang
based on the above impairment assessment undertaken by

management.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE - — \F+_-_A=+—HBHILFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16. IRE Y %

HK$'000
FHET
FAIR VALUE NV EE
At 1 January 2017 R=ZE—+tF—H—H 192,000
Exchange adjustment ME W H 13,529
Decrease in fair value recognised R MR 2 N EBER D
in the profit or loss (41,529)
At 31 December 2017 RZZB—tF+-_HA=+—H 164,000
Exchange adjustment PE 5 3 (7,296)
Decrease in fair value recognised RE=ERZ ATFEBERD
in the profit or loss (26,704)
At 31 December 2018 R=Z2-N\F+=HA=+—H 130,000

The Group's investment properties represent a completed
complex for commercial use in the PRC. The Group holds the
property interest under operating lease to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation. Accordingly, the property interest held
under operating lease is measured using the fair value model and

is classified and accounted for as investment properties.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2018 and 31 December 2017 has been arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out on the respective dates by
Norton Appraisals Holdings Limited (“Norton Appraisals”), an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected to the

Group.

Norton Appraisals is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors and has appropriate qualifications and recent
experiences in the valuation of properties in the relevant
locations. The fair value was determined based on the direct
comparison approach that reflects the price per square meter
of comparable market transactions, adjusted for differences in
location and remaining operating period of the properties up to
15 October 2023. There has been no change from the valuation

technique used in the prior year.

AEBZREMERUNTEZEEK
ZERFEARE AEENUKLLHER
EYWERERARRES R IEHER
BE-FHit UREMERHBZMER
mEARFEEREFAE YO HER
AR BIEEME -

REERREMER T —NF+_H
=t—BR-_F-—tF+-_A=+—8
ZAVEELAEAREYEREZS
VREREXGHEMERERFEER
~E ([ EBERFGE D RS 8 B HET
ZfhEEE -

ERERFIEATEAENSZESR
BREEEER ROTEFEEBLE
MEEBEZKR BEAFEERDRE
A RRATLL BT I5 R 5 2 8 F 7 KBS
LERLBOREE  UVAERMEULER
MERBELEFHEE_T_=F 1 A
tTHHB -HEFERE-—FEMAEL
BEH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=—ZE— NF+_-_A=+—HILFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and

best use of the properties is their current use.

16. RE W &)

R RENR 2 A FEER
REZERANRERER/EERARE °

;&}:
ki
5

Fair value Valuation technique(s) Relationship of unobservable
hierarchy and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
ATEEER ®REFZREZZEHABE BEREZERE AR EFBEAABBARTEEZBER
Level 3 Direct comparison approach Adjusting factors: A slight increase in the adjusting factor on
FE=1 BELBE HERY location will result in a significant decrease
in the fair value, and vice versa.
The key inputs are: (@) 20% to 50% (2017: NEFERHEHM LA  eBHRAFEER
TEBABER 20% to 50%) on R - RZIRN o
location; and
Price per square metre of RMB4,400 BEAME  NT20%%E A slight increase in the adjusting factor on
(2017: RMB5,200) taking adjusting 50% (ZZ—+4F : remaining operating period will result in a
factors on location and remaining 20%%50%) i & significant increase in the fair value, and

operating period

FIEHAKBRAREL,4007T (ZZ (b) 28% (2017: 34%) on

—+tF : AR¥S5,200m) 5 EY remaining operating

NERFISRCERZARREY period

BREARBCLH  28%
(ZZT—+F :34%)

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information
about the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

vice versa.
FIpCE AR ZYEYM L eB8HAT
BEXREM - R2IA -

RBEPRRTEERENE ZHBRA
FEEEBRZEHNT

Fair value at
31 December

Level 3 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

R=Z-—NF

+=H=+-8

B=H 2 AFEHE

FERT FHET

Commercial complex in the PRC R Bz ERGEe RE 130,000 130,000
Fair value at

31 December

Level 3 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

R=ZT—+F

+=-—BA=+—8

B=H ZRFEER

FHET FHET

Commercial complex in the PRC RHEzERRE RE 164,000 164,000

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 for during the year.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZE =T —\FF+_A=1T—HILEFE

OTHER ASSET 17. Hth & =
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—2-NfF S =
FERT FH&T
Rental deposit Heme 19,800 19,800
The amount represents 6-month rental deposit paid for the ZERBEABAEMREENBEME
lease of hotel property in Hong Kong. The rental deposit is fully T AEAEeHe HeleaR
refundable upon the end of the lease term. AW 2 E8URE -
INVENTORIES 18.7 &
Inventories represent food and beverage, consumable and other FERBAENR—MREEREFHALE
goods of hotel which are to be utilised in the ordinary course of R HEBEMREME R REAASE -
operations and are carried at cost.
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. E 5 K H 1 B I 8RR
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—2-nfE —E—ri
FHET FET
Trade receivables H 5 e WIR R
— services — R 6,591 6,147
— operating leases —KEHE 1,521 948
8,112 7,095
Rental and utility deposits e RKEZS 1,294 1,342
Other receivables and prepayments for Efh KRR REEER
operating expenses TE IR 16,779 54,462
Total trade and other receivables B 5 I H h fE U AR R 4a 5 26,185 62,899

As at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018, trade receivables

from contracts with customers amounted to HK$6,591,000 and

HK$6,147,000 respectively.

RZE-NF+_A=+—BRZZE
—N\F—A—B REHEEFELAMNE
S REWERT €85 5l 736,591,000/
7T 526,147,000/ 7T

ABEEIERERA A
201853
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables presented
based on the invoice dates which approximated the respective

revenue recognition date.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HLZ=ZT—\F+_A=+T—HILFE

19. EG R HMEWERNK ®

LT REZEERZIRER A H (EE
R ARER BHIEE) 27 2 BRIk D17 ©

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

Y WY -t

FHERT FET

0 — 30 days 0%30H 6,359 6,222
31 - 60 days 31260H 492 637
61 — 90 days 61290H 356 150
Over 90 days HBiE90H 905 86
8,112 7,095

As at 31 December 2018, included in the Group’'s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of HK$1,753,000 which are past due as at the reporting date.
Out of the past due balances, HK$905,000 has been past due
90 days or more and is not considered as credit-impaired as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
amounts are still considered recoverable. The Group does not

hold any collateral over these balances.

As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group’s trade
receivable balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of HK$873,000 which are past due as at the reporting date
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The

Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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RZE-N\FE+ZA=+—H X&H
CESERERERDIELAREMER
1,753,000 7T 2 B 5 W IR K - % 5
BHRBEFNRERPAERIKEEE -
ZEEHA A 8RR 0 905,0007% T E # Hi
WHHU L BEXEBWEAEELEEE
BE RERZSEIRURERZEE
BRUWESAZE  @BENERRATR
Bl o REEWERZEHEBRITHTMEME
e

R-ZT—tE+-A=+—0 24
ZESRENERARBELAERER
873,000 T2 B HEWER  ZFHE
SEWNEZANERALERFE @ - K
SENEM IR EBBEE A&
B A A R
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE - — \F+_-_A=+—HBHILFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continuep)  19. B H th FE UK BR FR (
Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired: EBERRELZE S RKERZ Rk
2017
HK$'000
—E—+F
FHET
31 - 60 days 31260H 637
61 — 90 days 61290H 150
Over 90 days FBE90H 86
Total et 873
The Group performed assessment on individual trade receivables REBEETHERE S EKERR
and no allowance was recognised for both years. LR EF SR -
Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables BRAREZE-_ZT—N\F+_-_A=+—81t
for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 33(b). FE 2B 5 R H th fE U BR 3R Z R E 5T
FEIEE A M FE33(b) ©
INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 20 1FEERE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—g-N\% ——t%
FHERT FHET
Listed investments TS
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong ~ R&E Eh 2 R A% 7,068 8,668
— Equity securities listed in Canada RMER LT 2 RAFES - 13,675
7,068 22,343
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 21.8R1TERKE S

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from

0.01% to 2.25% (2017: 0.01% to 1.3%) per annum.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group performed
impairment assessment on bank balances and concluded that the
probability of defaults of the counterparty banks are insignificant

and accordingly, no allowance for credit losses is provided.

IRITHERIZTMHFEFNE001%E2.25%
(ZE—+F :0.01%E1.3%)5 5 -

HE_Z-NE+_A=+—HILF
B REBEHRTERETREN G -
BH&®R  HHRITEN Z AR
CEARERIREEBERE -

)éi

~
-

|

ABEEIERERA A
201853

155



156

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=—ZE— NF+_-_A=+—HILFE

Property”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Luoyang Dinghe Electric Construction Company Limited (/&
5 R HE NEFZ AR AR (the “Purchaser”) entered into a sale
and purchase agreement (the “Disposal Agreement”), pursuant
to which Shropshire Property has conditionally agreed to dispose
to the Purchaser of its entire equity interest in Luoyang Golden
Gulf Hotel Company Limited (&F5&/KEKBHESRRQR)
(“Luoyang Golden Gulf”), a 60% owned subsidiary of Shropshire
Property, at a consideration of RMB61,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$68,500,000). A deposit of RMB21,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$23,906,000) was received by the
Company in November 2018 and included in “trade and other

payables” (note 23).

The assets and liabilities attributable to Luoyang Golden Gulf,
which is expected to be sold within twelve months, have been
classified as a disposal group held for sale and are presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position
(see below). The net proceeds of disposal are expected to exceed
the net carrying amount of the relevant assets and liabilities and

accordingly, no impairment loss has been recognised.

The major classes of assets and liabilities of Luoyang Golden Gulf
classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2018 are set out
below. The major asset is Luoyang Golden Gulf Hotel situated in

Luoyang in the PRC.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018

22.DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR 22. 0 EAEELEA
SALE
On 23 November 2018, Shropshire Property Limited (“Shropshire R-E—NEFE+—B=-+=H &KL

MEBRRARA ([RE] > AR A
EEEMBRR) BBGRMENZER
ERAR(TEADAZEEBH ([H
EhEl) Bl RECERHERE

N
of

MEAHEEREBEKEXRBES
BAA (DEBEKE]  —BHBHRE
HHO%EZNH B AR 22 2B

- REARARMG61,000,0007T (18
® 7 #968,500,000/8 L) ° A RA A B
RZZE-—NF+—-AKERE AR
21,000,0007T (48 & 7 4923,906,000/%
7o) W A T8 5 K& H i FE A5 BR 5 (B
F23) °

BEEKEREEERABRAR T =
BARLE  BoBERFHIEHEAR

WREEMBRARKRPEBZ2S (ET
X) - HEFRMAEFIRFRBNE
BEBEERABNKREFE  Eit -
I SRR BB 18 o

BBEEKER-_FT-NF+_A=1+—
BOBRRRFELENEERBENTIE

BRIEZIMT - LR P EISENBREE

KEXRBERTEERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZE =T —\FF+_A=1T—HILEFE

22.DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR 22. 2 EEABELREAHR (@
SALE (CONTINUED)

HK$'000
Fir
Property, plant and equipment Y - e R 47,128
Inventories FE 696
Trade and other receivables B 5 I H th fE U BR 5K 2,435
Bank balances and cash RITEBRIRE 179
Total assets classified as held for sale PEARIELENBEE 50,438
Trade and other payables B 5 I H th FE T BR 5K 35,535
Tax liabilities MIEEE 350
Deferred tax liabilities R IBEE 733
Total liabilities classified as held for sale DEAREHENBEARG 36,618
As at the date of approval of these consolidated financial Rt EZ GRSV BRERBEH  HESF
statements, the disposal has not been completed as the main BRARTHK  REREZRRGHE (B
condition precedent requiring the passing of a resolution by the KRR RIR R BB H & R E B
shareholders of the Company approving the Disposal Agreement THETZR N —HRER) MARE

and the transactions contemplated thereunder is not yet fulfilled. B °

ABEEIERERA A
201853 1 57
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23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The credit period on purchases of goods ranged from 30 to 60

days.

The aged analysis of the trade payables presented based on the

invoice date is as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HLZ=ZT—\F+_A=+T—HILFE

3.8 5 REME IR

BEZKRIRSEN F30HE60H -

B SREMNRFIZBEZ YR ZRKRD
oy :

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E2-N\F —T—tF

THx Tt

0 - 30 days 0Z30H 2,913 3,485
31 - 60 days 31%60H 565 796
61 — 90 days 61%290H 499 528
Over 90 days B3890 H 804 1,136
4,781 5,945

At the end of the reporting period, included in other payables is a
deposit received of RMB21,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$23,906,000) (2017: nil) in relation to the disposal of a

subsidiary in the PRC, details of which are set out in note 22.

The remaining balances of other payables at 31 December
2018 included deposits received from tenants of HK$4,319,000
(2017: HK$4,372,000), advance receipts from tenants of
HK$6,261,000 (2017: HK$6,356,000) and accrued operating
expenses of HK$49,205,000 (2017: HK$45,866,000). An amount
of HK$35,535,000 (2017: HK$36,233,000) of the other payables
was related to Luoyang Golden Gulf, which is classified as a
disposal group held for sale at 31 December 2018, as detailed in
note 22.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018

RmEER  EMEMERBERLE
URPEN—EHBRARERESE AR
#:21,000,0007T (8 %5 7 £923,906,000
BIL)(ZE—+F: &) HHABER
Pf5E22 ©

RZE—NE+_A=+—HEME
NERPRSBEREOEERELPRS
4,319,000/ 7T (=ZZ —+ 4 : 4,372,000
Bor) ~ B F 5K 786,261,000 7T
(== —t % :6,356,0008 1) R EA
&% B9 349,205,000 T (=T —+
% : 45,866,000/ JT) o A b J& T &
# H35,535,0008 T (=ZF — & :
36,233,000 7T) EIR[E & KEE# -
ER—_ZE—NF+_A=+—HHEA
FELEHRE BN 22 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZE =T —\FF+_A=1T—HILEFE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 23. B RHEHMEMNIRR

As described in note 2, upon application of HKFRS 15, as at LA BT FE2FT st - B PR A S B A% W 22 Al
1 January 2018, advances from customers of HK$3,074,000 F155% RZE—N\F—HA—H 5%
previously included in trade and other payables at 31 December At AZE—+tF+=_A=+—RH2

2017 were reclassified to contract liabilities (note 24).

B REMENERRZBKE P KRR

3,074,000 TEF HBEEE N EE (K

F24) -
CONTRACT LIABILITIES 2 EHEE
31 December 1 January
2018 2018*
HK$'000 HK$'000
—e-N\& —E-N\E
+=A=+-8 —A—a*
FHERT FHET
Hotel rooms HIERRE 3,109 2,881
Food and beverage BER 134 193
3,243 3,074
*  The amount in this column is after the adjustment from the * ZREeBEDKEREEMBRSE
application of HKFRS 15. ERFISHFARESD -
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised TRINTAFEBRZWAFREERE
in the current year relates to carried-forward contract liabilities. HEEEBE R -
Hotel Food and
rooms beverage
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEEE '8
FHT FHT
Revenue recognised that was included in ERRATAFVEHNEE
the contract liability balance at the @Rz WA
beginning of the year 2,881 193

HEBEERER AR

201853
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HLZ=ZT—\F+_A=+T—HILFE

25. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 25.

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and

movements thereon during the current and prior years:

EERIR A&
T ARAEE RBEEEY T BRT
BUEREUARAES :

Accelerated tax
depreciation

HK$'000

IR B IE T E

FHT

At 1 January 2017 RZZE—tH—HA—H 46,583
Exchange adjustments ME 3, 38 B 3,380
Credit to the profit or loss (note 9) T A (HfEE9) (8,809)
At 31 December 2017 R=ZZT—tF+=-HA=+—H 41,154
Exchange adjustments PE W, & (2,071)
Credit to the profit or loss (note 9) P AE S (FFEE9) (5,309)
Reclassified as held for sale (note 22) EF OB AFELE (FE22) (733)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE-NE+=-A=+-—H 33,041

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$635,728,000 (2017: HK$596,274,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of such losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are
losses of HK$20,042,000, HK$26,649,000, HK$24,306,000,
HK$416,170 and HK$33,992,560 that will expire in 2019,
2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023 (2017: unrecognised tax losses of
HK$7,146,000, HK$21,114,000, HK$28,075,000, HK$25,613,000
and HK$439,000 that will expire in 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021
and 2022), respectively. Other losses may be carried forward

indefinitely.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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RBERERK  AEEBZ R BH
% 85 18 /635,728,000 7T (=T —+
4 : 596,274,000 7r) + A A {E K
RAHEA - AR KR TER B & 2% A
RR MU ERZSEEBRERETER
HEE ABRBEEBEBEKH 5
RZZE-—NF —Z-FTF —FT=-—
F R _FRIT=FHHZ
/&1820,042,000/% 7T * 26,649,000/
7T+ 24,306,000/ 7T~ 416,170/ 7T &
33,992,560 L (ZE—tF : XA
TS5 187,146,000 7T ~ 21,114,0007%%
JT * 28,075,000 7T ~ 25,613,000/ 7T
439,000 T AR R =T — N\ F
ZE-NF ZZE-EFF —FE-—F
RZZFZ_FIH) - HthEEITER
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZE =T —\FF+_A=1T—HILEFE

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 25 R ERLIH ()
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has NERPERE  XEBERDE -
deductible temporary differences of HK$154,396,000 (2017: ek R E 2R EME R R E R
HK$173,238,000) associated with impairment of property, plant 7= $154,396,0008 7 (ZF — £ F -
and equipment. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in 173,238,000/ 7T) - BTN KA 8L B fE
relation to such deductible temporary differences as it is not o Bt e A 4K 8 R B) B 2 AT R B R =
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the 2 FAWEREBEATNREREZE
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. RIELERIAEE ©
SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY 26. N B IR AN
Number
of shares Share capital
HK$'000
RHHA B
AT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREEIBTZLER
Authorised EE
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 RZZT—tF-A—F:
and 31 December 2018 2+t FTZA=T-HEK
“Z-A\F+ZRA=t+-H 150,000,000,000 1,500,000
Issued and fully paid BETRER
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 R-ZE—tF-HA-8"
and 31 December 2018 2+t F+tZA=+-HEK
“Z-N\E+ZRA=T—H 789,211,046 7,892

ABEEIERERA A
201853
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27.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
on 30 May 2013 which is valid and effective for a period of 10
years commencing on 3 June 2013 (the date on which the last
condition to the Scheme was satisfied) until 2 June 2023, subject
to early termination by the Company in general meeting or by its

board of directors.

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company to grant
options to subscribe for shares of the Company (“Options”) to
any eligible employee (including executive directors) and any
non-executive director of the Group or any entity in which the
Group holds an equity interest (“Invested Entity”), any supplier
of goods or services to the Group or any Invested Entity, any
customer of the Group or any Invested Entity, any consultant,
adviser, manager, officer and entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the Group or any
Invested Entity, and any shareholder or any member of the Group
who has contributed to the business of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity (the “Participant”), as incentives
or rewards for their contributions or potential contribution to the

Group.

The total number of shares in respect of which Options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at the date of adoption of
the Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) unless the Company
obtains an approval from shareholders in a general meeting to
refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit provided that the Scheme
Mandate Limit so refreshed does not exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue as at the date of approval of refreshment
by its shareholders. Nevertheless, the maximum number of
shares of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding Options granted and not yet exercised under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 30% of the issued shares of the Company from

time to time.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HLZ=ZT—\F+_A=+T—HILFE

27. R RFAR S

ARRAR-ZE—=FRAA=+THKEMHT
—IBRERES (T3] FFEaR=
T-=FXA=B Gr8Zz&RKR—AK
HEiz B8 B TFRERE-F
T=ZFRNAZAL EERARRERR
RELREZTSRFRIERN -

AEEEEARRAMBEAEEELR
BAEERERMZASERARERER
AEm o TMER((REBER]) ZEM
RERER (BRATES) REMFE
HWITEF EARAKEREIMRER
BRERHERXRB 2HER  AREX
EAERZERNETS  RMASEEHER
REBREMHTE RAEBIEMOMEX
RZEMBERER FBAA KLE 17
BABNER HAKERTMNKREE
BZEBELEMZARBEEMBRRK
EAKE AR AN KB ERAKE QB
EAREBERMBITEAES 2 EME
BA28EE])ROBEE ([RBkE])
IARBER AN ) Z B PAYE 7 2R sk [ %

SRBFAEATREZBRER SR
ZBRMBEE  TREBRMAE AR
RAEIE BTN 210% ([ &8 X ER
B BRIARAEFSRRNRER
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZE =T —\FF+_A=1T—HILEFE

27.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of
which Options granted and may be granted to any Participant in
aggregate in any 12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue, without prior approval
from its shareholders in general meeting with such Participant
and his/her associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) abstaining

from voting.

The exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company,
and will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (ii) the average
closing price of the shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the

Company'’s shares on the date of grant.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1. The Options may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during
a period as the board of directors may in its absolute discretion
determine which shall not be more than 10 years from the
date of grant and subject to the provisions of early termination
thereof and the board of directors may provide restrictions on the

exercise of an Option.

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the number of shares in respect
of which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the Scheme was 65,600,000, representing 8.3% of the

shares of the Company in issue at the respective dates.

27. B RRR F &)

EARBARRBRRRBERAG ELULE
SL2EEREBEACERR LR
A MWERERKRERE) ERTRARTE
MEESREZBRESRZEETR
B FEITRMNEKE - REA+EAH
FASANSBBARREHITRMNZ
1% °

Fal

%

\

NN

THEEHARREZREE BHTER
(ABmBERE)  (VARAROHREE
BHEZWHE : (NRERH B A
R 5 H B2 FEEHE  Ri)A R F
MR L A EE -

Rz BREARARE A HEFT218
MER - ZAFANUET - BRE
AR B2 IGR  REF SR ERE
MIEEE < MR AERTE  HEEEH
BMAGHEEHRE AR +F LA
Rz RFRILGXRESZ AR
M2 AT AR BIFT AR

RZE-NFR-_FT—tF+=A
=+—B BEEAFHEARKRITEZ
% J% #% 565,600,00010 AR AR &
BEIZ B E#1TIR1H8.3% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HLZ=ZT—\F+_A=+T—HILFE

27.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 27. U RRRF &)
(CONTINUED)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows: BRI THEREBNT
Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period Exercise price
ZEAH BEAH 111 5 T8
24 April 2017 24 April 2017 24 April 2017 to 23 April 2022 HK$0.59
—E—+tF —E—tF —E—+tFWUA=-t+WmHEZE

MA-+mAH WmA=-+mH —E-FMWMA=+=H 0.59% 7T
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share TERBESER2EENAEZ LA
options held by eligibale participants during the current and prior FEFERNATIBEE &8 :
years:

Outstanding

Outstanding at

at Granted 31 December

1 January during 2017

2017 the year and 2018

R=TB—tF

R=B—+tF R=-F—-N\F

—A—H +=A=+—8H

Category of participants 2 HEEER 8 RATE FRTEH e R AT E
Directors 5% - 19,100,000 19,100,000
Employees EE - 46,500,000 46,500,000

- 65,600,000 65,600,000

Exercisable at the end of the year FRATHE 65,600,000

Weighted average exercise price (HK$) — hN#EFH17EE (GBit) N/A 7138 F 0.59 0.59

During the year ended 31 December 2017, options were granted BE_ZT—tHF+ZA=+—BL#HF

on 24 April 2017. The estimated fair value of the Options granted E-BREAZT—tFMNA=-+ITA

on 24 April 2017 is HK$13,715,000. B -RZTE—tFOA-THBERE
Z Bt 2 (A5t A F(E1E /13,715,000
ETT °

1 64 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZE =T —\FF+_A=1T—HILEFE

27.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

The fair value was calculated using the Binomial model. The

inputs into the model were as follows:

Share price HK$0.59
Exercise price HK$0.59
Expected volatility 41.12%
Expected life 5 years
Risk-free rate 1.114%
Expected dividend yield 0%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous
year. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of
non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural

considerations.

The Group recognised total expense of HK$13,715,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2017 in relation to share options

granted by the Company.

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair value of
the options. The variables and assumptions used in computing
the fair value of the share options are based on the directors’
best estimate. The value of an option varies with different

variables of certain subjective assumptions.
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28.

29.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under
the control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs to the scheme (subject to a maximum of HK$1,500
per month per employee) which contribution is matched by

employees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of the state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute certain percentage of payroll costs to
the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit

scheme is to make the specified contributions.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of HK$6,357,000
(2017: HK$6,080,000) represents contributions payable to these

plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

LITIGATION

On 27 December 2017, the Company and two independent
third parties (the “Vendors”) entered into an agreement (the
“Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to acquire or procure its nominee to acquire the entire
registered capital of a target group from the Vendors at a
consideration of RMB280,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$334,300,000). The principal asset of the target group is the
resort property which is located in Guangdong Province, the PRC,
being an area with hot springs and forest in the proximity. The
resort property occupies a site area of about 5,000 mu, of which
980 mu are for residential use, 2,200 mu are for commercial use
and 1,820 mu are for amenities. An amount of RMB20,000,000,
being the first instalment of the consideration, was paid to the

Vendors in January 2018 in accordance with the Agreement.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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29. LITIGATION (CONTINUED)

On 27 April 2018, the Company completed submitting an
application to the Guangzhou Arbitration Commission for
arbitration of the matter, seeking an arbitral award that, among
other things, (i) the Vendors to continue fulfilling the obligations
under the Agreement; (ii) the Vendors to cooperate with the
Company and provide all necessary documents and information
in order to complete the due diligence work pursuant to the
Agreement; (iii) the Vendors to cooperate with the Company
to complete all conditions precedent to the Agreement on or
before 30 October 2018; and (iv) the Vendors to pay the default
penalty under the Agreement and the legal costs incurred to the

Company.

On 27 April 2018, the Company was served an arbitration
application (which together with the arbitration application
lodged by the Company as set out above shall be referred
to as the "“Arbitration Applications”) lodged by the Vendors
demanding (i) termination of the Agreement; and (ii) payment by
the Company for default penalty together with legal costs and

arbitration fee.

The details are set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 29 December 2017, 22 January 2018, 15 February 2018, 9
March 2018, 28 March 2018 and 27 April 2018.

On 27 September 2018, the Company entered into settlement
agreement with the Vendors pursuant to which the Company and
the Vendors agreed to (i) terminate the Agreement; (ii) withdraw
the Arbitration Applications; (iii) bear respective legal costs and
arbitration fee; (iv) and the Vendors to refund the deposit of

RMB20,000,000 to the Company.

The deposit was refunded to the Company in full before the end

of the current year.
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30. OPERATING LEASES
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30. &R & FH 4 R IE

The Group as lessee TEBERERAA
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
—®-\F  —T—t%
FERx FH&T
Minimum lease payments recognised under 4 iR & 4& < A4
operating leases during the year Rz HEEERNRK 41,883 34,142

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases which fall due as follows:

RERPLERE  AEBRESETA
B EER Oz A RRERESHRIES
AHE o WEAREZREBBENT ¢

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

—Z2-N\F —E—tF

FHET FAET

Within one year —FR 40,454 40,452
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EEFRAF(BIEEEMTE) 39,600 79,254
80,054 119,706

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for the hotel property in Hong Kong and certain of its office
properties. Leases are negotiated for terms ranging from one to

six years and the rentals are pre-determined and fixed.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
HK$48,873,000 (2017: HK$47,707,000). The properties held

have committed tenants for the next one to six years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases:

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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30. OPERATING LEASES (CONTINUED)

31.

30. BE MY RE 5)

The Group as lessor (CONTINUED) TEBFEREBAA @
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
Y mpy -t
FE T FHET
Within one year —FR 1,871 4,739
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEFERF(BREEEMST) 5,495 7,114
More than five years hF & 1,844 3,058
9,210 14,911

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group

did not enter into transactions with related parties.

There were no outstanding balances with related parties at the

end of the reporting period.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors of the Company who are
considered as the key management personnel during the year is

set out in note 11.

The remuneration of key management personnel is determined
by the remuneration committee of the Company having regard to

the performance of individuals and market trends.
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2. EKEREL

AEBEREREEABERFEE
HmfFH&ETE BRASEZER
AREREZH  TRRREERKE
o REBEEERME FFEMER o

32. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

AEEZEARBREREIREEE

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash

equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,

comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
semi-annually basis. As part of this review, the directors consider

the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of

HAURARRABHE AEEER (B
BERITRARER)

ARBREEFYFRAEARRE - 7
HEHPp—HoREFEREAKNARER
BAFMSCER REEFZHERRZ

capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group HOASBEEeBRBIRERE  BITHR
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of D BEROURETHERS A -
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the BN T -
issue of new debt.
33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS TR T A
a. Categories of financial instruments a. @I EEHR
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—®-N\E T t%
FExT FH&T
Financial assets cHEE
FVTPL FRBHEATEETE
Mandatorily measured at FVTPL wHERBREZATEETE
— Held-for-trading —HIEEERE 7,068 22,343
Financial assets at amortised cost BEHEKATEZEMEE 1,883,017 =
Loans and receivables (including B3R e AR 3R
cash and cash equivalents) (BREREeEREEMEIEER) - 1,861,437
1,890,085 1,883,780
Financial liabilities e E
Amortised cost B PR AN 18,312 24,232
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZE =T —\FF+_A=1T—HILEFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

Management of the Group monitors and manages the
financial risks relating to the operations of the Group
through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by
degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market
risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),

credit risk and liquidity risk.

There has been no change to the types of the Group's
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the Group's

manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

Market risk

(i)  Currency risk
Neither subsidiaries of the Company nor the Company
have significant foreign currency sales and purchases or
balances. Therefore, the Group’s exposure to foreign

currency risk is minimal.
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33.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 338/ T A )
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. W XEREEEEREE
policies (CONTINUED) (&)
Market risk (CONTINUED) 755 2 e (%)

(i) Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate bank balances (see note 21
for details). The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of interest rates

on bank balances.

Total interest income from financial assets that are

measured at amortised cost is as follows:

(i) FYE @ g
AEBERSRE N EE R H
FRBITRES (FEBEELHN
H21) 6 - AEB R SR
ENERBREEERRRT
BBz AERZKE -

BRBHEKAGEZEREE
PSR S WA

2018 2017
HK$"000 HK$'000
—2-N\%F =55 —aehE
FTER THT

Interest income IV ON
Financial assets at amortised cost IZEHK AT EZEMEE
Loans and receivables BERREWER(BERS
(including cash and cash REeEEIER)

equivalents)

Interest expense on financial liabilities not measured at

3,975

3,975

WIkEBERRAFEER

FVTPL: EZoRMBEZFERAY
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E2-N\F —ET—tF
TEx FHET
Financial liabilities at BEERATECERERE
amortised cost 376
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZE =T —\FF+_A=1T—HILEFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (CONTINUED)

Market risk (CONTINUED)

(ii)

Interest rate risk (CONTINUED)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
the financial instruments outstanding at the end of
reporting date were outstanding for the whole year.
A 25 basis point (2017: 25 basis points) increase or
decrease in variable-rate bank balances represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible

change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 25 basis points (2017: 25
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s loss for the
year ended 31 December 2018 would decrease/
increase by HK$522,000 (2017: decrease/increase
by HK$1,356,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate

bank balances.

3. T H )
BEEAREEEERKE

55 J2 g (#8)
(i) FYEE bz (&)

R DT
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HLZ=ZT—\F+_A=+T—HILFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 3. T H )

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MKEKEEEEREKE
policies (CONTINUED) (#&)
Market risk (CONTINUED) 755 2l 2 (%)
(iii) Other price risk (i) A B

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in equity securities measured at FVTPL. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining a

portfolio of investments with different risks.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the

reporting date.

If the prices of respective instruments had been
10% (2017: 10%) higher/lower, loss for the
year ended 31 December 2018 would decrease/
increase by HK$590,000 (2017: decrease/increase by
HK$1,865,000) as a result of the changes in fair value

AEBREBERBERFE
B ERARZF 2 REAK
EBRAERRR EEER
B -—EESTRARZEK
BHaERERR -

BRE DT
NTHBRESTDRERZ
HAHAE S 2 RAERR

RMEE °

METAEBREN TK
10% (ZB—+ % :10%) -
AlEz—_T—N&+-A
St-RLEFEZEERKS
AAREEBEREZATE

of investments held for trading. B 2 )i e 4245 H1590,000
BL(ZE—LF @D 8
AM1,865,0007% ) °
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of the
financial assets best represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the

counterparties.

Trade receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits and credit approvals. Before accepting any
new customer, the Group uses an internal credit scoring
system to assess the potential customer’s credit quality
and defines credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring
attributed to customers are reviewed twice a year. Other
monitoring procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model
upon application of HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model) on
trade balances individually or based on provision matrix. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the

Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.
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b.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HLZ=ZT—\F+_A=+T—HILFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (CONTINUED)
Trade receivables (CONTINUED)

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified
approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at
lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with significant outstanding
balances or credit-impaired, the Group determines the
expected credit losses on these items by using a provision

matrix, grouped by past due status.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
uses debtors’ aging to assess the impairment for its
customers in relation to its hotel operations because these
customers consist of a large number of small customers with
common risk characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance

with the contractual terms.

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is

available without undue cost or effort.

The Group assessed that there is no significant loss
allowance for trade receivables in accordance with HKFRS 9

as at 31 December 2018.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (CONTINUED)

Trade receivables (CONTINUED)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for
62% (2017: 58%) of the total trade receivables as at 31
December 2018.

Other receivables
The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model upon application of HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss

model) on other receivables based on 12m ECL.

For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the
Group uses past due information to assess whether credit

risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.

The Group assessed that there is no significant loss
allowance for other receivables in accordance with HKFRS 9

as at 31 December 2018.

The credit risks on bank balances are limited because the

counterparties are banks with good reputation.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with several banks with good reputation, the
Group does not have any other significant concentration of

credit risk.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HLZ=ZT—\F+_A=+T—HILFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s

operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash

flows.

The Group does not have unutilised banking facilities for

both years.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the

Group can be required to pay.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
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3.2/ T B ()
b. HEEREERIERKE

policies (CONTINUED) (&)
Liquidity risk (CONTINUED) T E % JEfx ()
Liquidity table TEE & &
On demand
Weighted or Total Carrying
average less than undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 year cash flows 31 December
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REX AFERE  tZA=t+-8
METERE X-FR REAR ZEREE
% THEL TET TAT
2018 —E-N\F
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMERR - 18,312 18,312 18,312
2017 “EBtF
Trade and other payables B 5 R E A T BR R

c. Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and

financial liabilities.

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured at
fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the
fair value, the Group uses market-observable data to the

extent it is available.

« ERMIAZAFVEERE

AMEREERASEENAIEE
TRAEMEEREREBZAF
BEZERM-

R BHREMS  AREHD SR
TADRAFEEE - BatAF
EEEASEFRABTSAE

HEAEERERAE
20185 %
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=—ZE— NF+_-_A=+—HILFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

33.€@ T H )

c. Fair value measurements of financial ¢ TRMIAZATEEE
instruments (CONTINUED) (&)

(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and () KEBEREEEZNFEETEZE
financial liabilities that are measured at fair A EEeHEER HE
value on a recurring basis ERFIEE
Some of the Group's financial assets are measured REZHRPERE  AEELH S
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The BMEEEAFEMBETE - TRIEMHR
following table gives information about how the fair ZECREEATBEZLETSS
values of these financial assets are determined (in E(LERAMRAZHERT ERE
particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used). AHIE) ©
Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2018 R=FB-NE+=A=+—-8HZ2

ATEEER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E—® EZR B=H st
FERT FHERT FHET FHET
Financial asset EREZRATLEER
at FVTPL TECERMEE
Investments held FIEEEKRA
for trading - listed — ERAEFH
equity securities 7,068 - - 7,068
Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2017 R=FB—-—t&+=-A=+—-82Z2
AR EEEBR
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE— EH E=H 4t
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Financial asset SREE
Investments held for ~ #H{EEEHEXRE
trading - listed equity —— ETRAFEFH
securities 22,343 - - 22,343
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE - — \F+_-_A=+—HBHILFE

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (CONTINUED)

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis (CONTINUED)

(iif)

Financial asset

Fair value as at

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

3.2/ T H )

C.

(1)

Fair value hierarchy

EMIAZAVEERE
(%)

KB REEL N FIEEFE
ZAEEHEERTHE
E2FIEHE ()

Valuation

technique(s) and
key input(s)

LREE RATEHZATEE DAVEEER HEAEREERAYE
“B-Nf+t=A=+-B ZZT—tF+t-RA=1-H
Investments Listed equity Listed equity Level 1 Quoted bid prices in
held for trading securities in: securities in: an active market.
- Hong Kong - Hong Kong
- HK$7,068,000 - HK$8,668,000; and
- Canada
- HK$13,675,000
RIEEERE FHRAES ERARES £—% ERTSEARE
-&E -&E
—7,068,000/% 75 —8,668,000# T ¢ &
IIEYN

—13,675,000 7T

There were no transfers between the different levels of

the fair value hierarchy for the year.

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

is determined in accordance with generally accepted

pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the

carrying amounts of financial assets and financial

liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial

statements approximate their fair values.

(iif)

AN
i o

FEENRRE R HILE

WHAAEEBE N FIEE
FEZEHMEERTMAR
ZRFEE

cRMEERSMABZATEA
R LG M2 EERR RRR

MRMEMEDMEE °

ARREZRR  NEEMBHRER
THREIAZEHEERERAERBLZ
REEEAFEEES

ABEEIERERA A
201853
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HLZ=ZT—\F+_A=+T—HILFE

34. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 4. EMETHELE B RBEHER
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TRFVNNEAREEHEE 2 AEHEAE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash B REESEEESESH g@E
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for EHEACZEBENERESREELHAR
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in REEREBEENAEB  EE8EER
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows EXDEARETIRESREZAE -

from financing activities.

Other
borrowings
HK$'000
HitfE &
FHET
At 1 January 2017 R-ZZE—tF—HA—H =
Financing cash outflows BRI (1,066)
Interest expense FMEMAE 1,066
At 31 December 2017 R-—ZE—+F+-_HA=+—H -
Financing cash outflows BERS R (376)
Interest expense B 376
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE-N\F+-_H=+—H -

1 82 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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OF THE COMPANY

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the

Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below.

Name of subsidiary

Place of
incorporation/
registration

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & &

Paid-up issued/
registered capital

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Directly
2018
%
Ea) A BRTHR/
HEAR LR BREH EMER
HiE
—E2-N\f
%
Allied Glory Hong Kong HK$2 -
a8 B 28T
Apex Quality Group The BVI United States -
Limited (“Apex”) dollars (“US$")
5,548,172
Apex Quality Group REABRES 5,548,172
Limited ([ Apex]) EVA(EH);
Benchmark Pacific Limited The BVI Us$1 -
Benchmark Pacific Limited HB#BREE (EH
HMH China Bermuda Canadian -
Investments Limited dollars (“CAD")
1,152,913
HMH China BRE 1,152,913
Investments Limited g ([ 1)
Lucky Million The BVI Us$1 -
Investments Limited
Lucky Million REBHBRES E
Investments Limited
Luoyang Golden Gulf# The PRC RMB145,000,000 -
B K E HE AR

145,000,0007T

—=

—=

A B R

NE+=AZ+—AIER

5. XABEEMBLRAFE

BRANE

FAZH

Proportion
ownership interest
held by the Company

%

%

&
]

Indirectly
2017 2018 2017
% % %
ERARKHRZ
iker: ¥ $:-3:47]
%
—E—tF —B-N\¥ —T—tF

%

I RS AN R R E 3 KR
REFBEHRNTX -

Principal activities
and place of operation

TEXRRERME

Investment holding

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

Investment holding

Investment holding

Hotel ownership and
operation in the PRC
R EHER RSB E

HEEEERER AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE —_T— N\F+_A=+—HIFE

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Name of subsidiary

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Paid-up issued/
registered capital

Proportion
ownership interest
held by the Company

Directly Indirectly
2018 2017 2018 2017
% % % %
ML BRITHAR/ EYNGESE P
MEAREB BRHH EMER FERRERLA
HiE k3
—2-N\§ —T—tfF —2-N\§ T tF
% % % %
Rosedale Hotel Group The BVI US$1
Limited
HEEEEEERAR HBABRHS (E
Rosedale Guangzhou** The PRC US$11,500,000
N T H 11,500,000 7T
Rosedale Hotel The BVI US$1
International Limited
Rosedale Hotel REHRARES (E
International Limited
Rosedale Hotel Hong Kong HK$2
Management Limited
HEREEEERAR BF 2%
Rosedale Hotel Shenyang The PRC RMB 168,000,000
Company Limited*#
EBHRHBBEARARM HE AR
168,000,0007T
Rosedale Park Limited Hong Kong HK$2
Rosedale Park Limited B 28T
Shenyang Hotel Holdings  The BVI Us$100
Limited
KEBERNAERDR ZEBARARES 100% T
Shenyang Limited The BVI Us$1
Shenyang Limited REBHBRES 17T

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited

35. RN B EEM B R BFE @)

Principal activities
and place of operation

TREXBREFBE

Investment holding in
Hong Kong

Hotel ownership and
operation in the PRC
R EHEE RS EBE

Investment holding

Hotel management in

Hong Kong

RERDEEE

Hotel ownership and

operation in the PRC
R EHEE RS EBE

Hotel operation in
Hong Kong

REBEEEE

Investment holding

Investment holding

RRER
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE - — \F+_-_A=+—HBHILFE

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

5. R RNEEEME D AFE @)

Place of Proportion
incorporation/ Paid-up issued/ ownership interest Principal activities
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital held by the Company and place of operation
Directly Indirectly
2018 2017 2018 2017
% % % %
MR BRTHR/ ERAFHZ
il PR B A E A ikt i $:3:401] TREBRERLY
HE GE:3
—EB-N\F —E—tF —B-N\f§ —E—tF
% % % %
Shropshire Property The BVI Ordinary - - - 100 100  Investment holding in
us$10 the PRC
Preference -
US$1,000
RE EEERRES AR R R B 12 AR
—10%7T
BEK
—1,000% 7T
Success Billion Limited The BVI US$1 - - 100 100  Trading of securities
in Hong Kong
Success Billion Limited REHRARES E REBEEES
The Rosedale Luxury The PRC US$20,000,000 - - 100 100  Property investment in
Hotel & Suites Ltd.*** the PRC
HEBX(LE) Bl 20,000,000 7T RAPBEYERE
= NG
# The subsidiary is a Sino-foreign equity joint venture. # ZHEB AT ARINEARE L RNF]

#  This subsidiary is a Sino-foreign co-operative joint venture. Allied
Glory is entitled to recoup its total investment (including capital
and interest) from the after-tax earnings of Rosedale Guangzhou
before any amounts are distributed. Thereafter, the after-tax
earnings of Rosedale Guangzhou are to be distributed at 80%
and 20% to Allied Glory and the PRC Partner respectively.

##*  These subsidiaries are wholly foreign-owned enterprises.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

##

#iH

ZHEBAR A —RPIEGEAER
Al BINABZBRBEEAFBAED K
EﬁmﬁﬁuvA**ﬁ%?iéEMz@E

E2ERE (BIEEARFE) c 21
FJHIE%EZK?%R@:@%MLASO%
20% 2 LBl Bl DR F AL RFBER
B o

k=113

ZEMBARRINEBERE -

E=ZRRERMINANRAR 2B EH
AEBEZEEREEREATE -EF
R EMHBRARZFIEETRE
BRILE °

ABEEIERERA A
201853

185



For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE —_T— N\F+_A=+—HIFE

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 35. A RNRIEEMB QS @
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end FER - HEAAKEB AT XTEMNERS
of the year. B o
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other REMEALRE - N2 T 5 EMWERAK
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A majority of EFEVIEEEHBEAR - HEHWBA
these subsidiaries operate in the BVI. The principal activities of FXrEAEEBARSHELE - HEW
these subsidiaries are summarised as follows: BARIZ EEEBHERMT :
Principal activities of business Principal place of incorporation Number of subsidiaries
2018 2017
FTEEKTES = ERE AR L it B MEASDHE
—EB-N\F —E—LF

Investment holding Hong Kong
REEZR BB

The BVI

REERRES
Inactive Cayman Islands
A E BB FEHS

Hong Kong

B

The BVI

EREBRES
Others Hong Kong
Hh B

The PRC

3

The BVI

EREBRES

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE —T— \F+_A=+—HILFE

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 5. A RNAIEEMB QS @
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that BEEAEREZZHEETE
have material non-controlling interests MEBATZFHE
The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries TR EEEAFIERER ZIAE
of the Group that have material non-controlling interests: FEEMBRE ZFFE -
Proportion of
ownership interests and
Place of Principal voting rights held by Profit (loss) allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary incorporation place of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
FERRERECRARER
HEAFEE HRALEY TEEXNT RRRELE ARTHERER2ET (58 ithERER
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
HKS000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

ZE-NE ZF-tf = ZEtF RN CE 4
t=A=t-B t-A=f-B t=A=t-B fA=t-H FZA=t-B f-A=1-A

§¥-7 Tix TR FEn
Apex and its subsidiaries The BVI Hong Kong and
the PRC 10.6% 206,713
ApexREHB AR RREBRES  AARTE
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests (16,110)
BAERESR 2 Efb {5

FEANELT

190,603

HEEEZERERA A
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE —_T— N\F+_A=+—HIFE

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests

(CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the

Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests

is set out below. The summarised financial information below

represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

Apex and its subsidiaries

35. RN B EEM B R BFE @)

BREERFEREZZHFRE

Kop = NG = 3 EE )

BEERFERBEZAKENE QR
Z B ERBA T o AT B R E R

EREEAMBHAHREAE -

Apex R B 118 2 &]

31 December
2018

HK$'000
—EB-N\%F
+=A=+—H
FHERT

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of the
Company

Non-controlling interests of Apex

Non-controlling interests of Apex'’s
subsidiaries

1 88 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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MENEE

FRBEE

mERIE

FnRBEME

S

ARRHEA NGRS

E\

Apex3FEE A% i w=

ApexHi & A 8] 2 FFE IR 2

1,349,964

306,681

(60,846)

(34,906)

1,354,180

160,563

46,150

31 December
2017
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZE =T —\FF+_A=1T—HILEFE

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 5. R RNEEEME D AFE @)
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries BEERFERERZZHEZE
that have material non-controlling interests MEAaZF1E @
(CONTINUED)
Apex and its subsidiaries (CONTINUED) Apex Rk B 18 2 7] (4&)
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000

HE=F-N\F BE-F L7
t=A=+-8 +-A=+-8

WFE IEFE
FHERT FAT
Revenue WA 232,477 222,558
Interest income and other income F B B E A Uk A 22,493 22,134
Expenses =53 (184,632) (258,671)
Profit (loss) for the year REEm A (&) 70,338 (13,979)
Profit (loss) attributable to owners of RARHEA ARMLEF (EE)
the Company 64,497 (7,787)
Profit (loss) attributable to non-controlling Apex3JE#2 A% 4 25 & 15 3% 7 (E518)
interests of Apex 7,647 (923)
Loss attributable to non-controlling Apexffi 8 A 7] Z I R%
interests of Apex’s subsidiaries WE = FE G B 18 (1,806) (5,269)
Profit (loss) for the year REEm A (&) 70,338 (13,979)

Other comprehensive (expense) income RABHEAR ABIEEMEE

attributable to owners of the Company  (FisZ) Was (13,389) 21,251
Other comprehensive (expense) income ApexIEE R EH MM

attributable to non-controlling interests (B ) W2k

of Apex (1,587) 2,520
Other comprehensive (expense) income  ApexBit B A 7 7 FEHE AR £ 25 FE (L

attributable to non-controlling interests ~ E b2 (F) Wzt

of Apex’s subsidiaries (2,004) 3,151
Other comprehensive (expense) REEFEHME2ME (FAX) K=
income for the year (16,980) 26,922

ABEEIERERA A
201853 1 89
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE —_T— N\F+_A=+—HIFE

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests

(CONTINUED)

Apex and its subsidiaries (CONTINUED)

35. XA RIEEMB A BAFEE @

BEEARFEREZZHZE
Kop NI =3 EE )

Apex K E [ & 2 7] (#)

Total comprehensive income attributable
to owners of the Company

Total comprehensive income attributable
to non-controlling interests of Apex

Total comprehensive expense attributable
to non-controlling interests of Apex’s

subsidiaries

Total comprehensive income for the year
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
Net cash inflow from operating activities
Net cash outflow from investing activities
Net cash outflow from financing activities

Net cash inflow

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018

Year ended
31 December
2018
HK$'000
BE-_Z—-N\HF
+=-—A=+—H
LFE
FERT
RARER ARG 2E K
ek 51,108
ApexIE 12 I% i o5 E 15 2 T W s
R 6,060
Apexf B A & Z I 12 IR 7 25 e
HEERXZEHE
(3,810)
AT ERE KRB 53,358

I 22 B 5 BT A1 SR,

REBRYHCHAERAFE

BRERY < AERHFE

RELTBZRASRLFE

RBERAFE

12,234

(130)

12,104

Year ended

31 December
2017

HK$'000
BE-T—tF
+=A=+—8
IEFE

FHET




For the year ended 31 December 2018 & = —

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

.%'RQEJJ ﬁ%#ﬁ% B

E-NFT+ZR=+—HILFE

36. "1 B) 2 BF #& AR R 3R 3k K

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E-N\F =c5 ks
TER THET

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Current assets

Other receivables and prepayments
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Investments held for trading

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Amounts due to subsidiaries

Net current assets

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

FRBEE
ER 3N
RIE R Al 2R E
JRE Uk Bt I8 2 ) SRR

REBEE

H b 8 U BR SR K TR 3R
& Uk Bt B A R SRIR
FIFEBEZHRE
RITREBEES

RBAE
B 5 Rk H e BR K
& A< Y B8 & B 3R0R

RBEEFE

BEEFE

BEARREE
RN
&t

A

292
239,764
1,265,757

1,505,813

1,620
516,679
4,477
347

523,123

5,356
457,228

462,584

60,539

1,566,352

7,892

1,558,460

1,566,352

HEEEZERERA A

1

9

1

2018ii
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE ==&

36.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

—NE+ZRA=+—HLFE

36. N1 B) 2 BF #& AR R 3R 3k K

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) & )
Movement in reserves RE2E
Share
Share options Special  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
R EE BRERE WEIEE 2itER k]
FHT FHT FHT FHT FHT
At 1 January 2017 W=Z—+F—F—H 1,360,752 - 658,303  (1,063,175) 955,880
Profit and total comprehensive REERFIR
income for the year PENREE - - = 530,704 530,704
Recognition of equity-settled BERUBRA T A
share-based payments - 13,715 - - 13,715
At 31 December 2017 WN-E—+tF+-A=+—H 1,360,752 13,715 658,303 (532,471) 1,500,299
Profit and total comprehensive REERFIR
income for the year 2ENELE - = = 58,161 58,161
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+-A=t+—H 1,360,752 13,715 658,303 (474,310 1,558,460

1 92 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018




RESULTS
2018
HK$000
—s-nf
FET
Revenue B A 263,011
(Loss) profit before tax BrBi AT (E518) & F (65,765)
Income tax credit (expense) Fr8fi e (Ax) 66,188
Profit (loss) for the year AEEmF (EE) 423
(Loss) profit for the year THALEEREE
attributable to: (E18) & 7 -
Owners of the Company RRAREB A (3,785)
Non-controlling interests I 12 IR 2 4,208
423
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
2018
HK$'000
—E-N\F
FET
Total assets BE®E 2,391,042
Total liabilities BELR 176,111
2,214,931
Equity attributable to KABHEEB A
owners of the Company FE (L% 2,024,328
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR 4 2 190,603
2,214,931

£

Year ended 31 December

2017 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE+=A=+-HLEFE
—F—+F =F-AF <-F-IF
TBTE TiBT TBT

EERERE

At 31 December

2017 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R+t=—A=+-—H
T+t ZZE—RF =ZE—hF
FHT FHT FHET

2014
HK$'000

—ZT—E
FHT

2014
HK$'000

—ZT—WF
FHT

HEEEERER AR
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HOTEL PROPERTIES PER Y/
Company Address Existing Use Site Area  Gross Area % Interest
| 3 3 B AR it 42 T 7 MEE HEESH
Rosedale Hotel Rosedale Hotel & Suites, Hotel operation 10,838.88 46,865.83 72.7%
Guangzhou Co., Ltd. Guangzhou sg.m. sg.m.
No. 348
Jiang Nan Da Road Central,
Haizhu District,
Guangzhou, the PRC
B M FA BB IE 5 R A A BRI IS IR %TS  10,838.88  46,865.83 72.7%
A BN T K R
IR
TR KB 34855
Luoyang Golden Gulf Luoyang Golden Gulf Hotel Hotel operation 9,025.51 21,269.18 60.0%
Hotel Company Limited No. 319 Zhongzhou sqg.m. sq.m.
Zhong Road,
Xigong District,
Luoyang City,
Henan Province, the PRC
REEKERBEGRAR  RESKEREE EBEER 9,025.51  21,269.18 60.0%
FEIREE K 5K
BEE T
AL

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Company Address Existing Use Site Area Gross Area % Interest
AT it 1t B A& b 42 T 7 HWEE EEESH
Rosedale Hotel Shenyang Rosedale Hotel Shenyang Hotel operation 5,335.00 43,000.34 84.9%
Company Limited No. 99 North Station Road, sg.m. sg.m.

Shenhe District,

Shenyang City,

Liaoning Province,

the PRC
ESIABBE AR A A &SRR RS E® 5,335.00  43,000.34 84.9%

H Tk K

HEE

ES ™

B &

3k ik 59955

HEEEERER AR




YM=F1E

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Company Address
AT it hk

REWMZE

Existing Use Lease Term

REAZ BY

The Rosedale Luxury No. 1900 Tianshan Road,

Hotel & Suites Ltd. Changning District,

Shanghai, the PRC

HEEX(LB)BRAR hELEEH

EERE
X L % 19005%

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited

Vacant Leasehold with a term expiring on
15 October 2023

=g MEEF HPEN-_Z-_=F1+AH
+HBER




Q Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
)/

Room 3401, 34th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

HEBREEZRBRA A

EBBTERANER1835AMAP 03413401 =

Rosedale

www.rhh.com.hk



	封面
	公司資料
	目錄
	管理層論述及分析
	董事簡介
	高級管理人員簡介
	企業管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況報表
	綜合股東權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	財務概要
	物業詳情
	封底



